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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Ta the General Assermbly of Anadolu [suzo Otomotiv ve Ticaret A 8.

A)  Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1)  Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Anadolu Isuzu Otomotiv ve Ticaret A5, (“the
Company™) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of fmanma]
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of comprchensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS),

2) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on audiling issucd by Capital Markets Board
and the Standards on Independent Auditing (“SIA™) which is a part of Turkish Auditing Standards
published by the Public Owversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™). Our
responsibilities inder thosc standards are further described in the duditor s Responsibilities for the Audit
af the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors (“Code ol Ethics™) published by the POA,
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requircments
and the Code of Ethics. We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale
to provide a basis for our opinion.

3} Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our andit of the consolidated financial staternents as a whole, and in forming our
opinion Lthereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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3)

Key Audit Matters (cont’d)

Key Audit Malter

_!—_l::ﬁv the matter was aﬁdressed in the nud_it

Deferred Toax Assets Calculated over Previous Years'
Tax Losses

According to the Turkish Tax Legislation, financial
losses stated in the declaration can be deducted from
the profit of the company for the period providing not
cxeeeding 5 years. Total [inancial losses occurred
from 2016 through 2019 of the Group transferring as
of 31 December 2020 is 138,546 thousand TL.

Mg stated in Note 25 related to consolidated financial
statemenls, The Group has deferred tax asset of 27,709
thousand TL from previous years’ tax losses as of 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019; TL. 32253
thousand),

Partially or wholly recoverable amount of caleulated
deferred lax asscts is estimated by the Group
Management according to assumptions under current
circumstances. During the estimation, fulure business
plans, losses in the last 5 years and due dates of unused
losses are considered. o what extent the assets in
question can be recognized depends on the estimations
of the Group Management, therefore these assels are
evaluated as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures applicd in this field include
the issues below:

To identify controls relevant to process of
implication of assumptions made by the
management,

To design and apply lests to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence with regards
to evaluation of design and determination of
implementation of the controls.

To evaluate and investigate the assumptions
and judgements used in delermination of
future taxable earming eslimations together
with sensitivity analyses by analysing
assumptions made by  the  Group
Management,

To evaluate validity and acceptability of
assumptions made by the Group
MManagement;

To consider the effect of adjustments in the
legislation if required; and

To reconcile amounts and expiry dates of
utilisable previous years® tax losses with tax
declarations;

To evaluate whether the disclosurss in
consolidated  [inancial  statements  for
applications of judgements used in the
estimations of deferred tax assets stated or
not stated in the consolidated [inancial
staternents include the deferred tax position
according to TAS provisions.

To evaluate appropriatencss of related
disclosures regarding to Taxation on Income
in Note 25 in accordance with TFRS
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4)  Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated [inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
5} Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Responsibilitics of independent auditors in an independent audit are as [ollows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordanee with the standards on audiling issued by Capital Markets Board
and SIA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud
ot error and are considered malerial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expecled to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the standards on auditing issued by Capital Markets Board and
S1A, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

»  [dentify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
ohtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion (The risk
of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal conirol)

s (Obtain an understanding of inlernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

s  Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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s Conclude an the ap'pmpriateness of management’s use of the going cancern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists related to events
or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s abilily to continue as a going concern,
If we conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in our anditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial stalements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

s  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

=  (Ohbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible [or our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interes! benefits of such communication.
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B)  Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph tour of the Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102
(“TCC™), the auditar's report on the system and the committee of early detection of risk has been
submilted to the Board of Directors of the Company on 26 February 2021,

In accordunce with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, nothing has come to our attention that
may cause us to believe that the Group’s set of accounts and financial statements prepared lor the period
1 January-31 December 2020 does not comply with TCC and the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association in relation to financial reparting.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the
required information and documentation with respect to our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Koray Orztiirke.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECT MALI MUSAVIRLIK AS.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Koray Oztiirk, SMMM
Partner

Istanbul, 26 Fehruary 2021
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ANADOLU 1SUZU OTOMOTIV SANAY[ VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 1
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A% OF 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Liva unless otherwise indicated.)

Andited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
31 December 31 December
Notes 2020 2019

ASSETS
Current Assets 1.149.598.287 857.423.932
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 267.087.823 140,803,554
Trade Receivables 424 999147 402,325,775
Trade Receivables from Related Parties 6-27 36479637 2573971
Trade Receivabley from Third Parties & 388519490 390,751 804
Other Receivables 3897560 13,904,303
Orther Receivables from Third Parties 7 3897560 13.904.303
Inventories 9 390663282 258,854,407
Derivative Insiruments & 53.132 442 163
Frepaid Expenscs 17 17.834.671 9879886
Assets Related to Current Tax 25 T2R.270 424,247
Other Current Assels 17 44,334 396 30,789,595
MNon-Current Assets 779,795,941 T19.020.218
Other Receivables |86 146
Chher Receivables from Third Parties Fi 186 I86
Property, Plant and Equipment 10 367.988.122 557.688.250
Right-of-use Assels 12 4819061 5.330.515
Intangihle Assets 173.400.714 133.932.317
Goodwill I3 2.340.995 2340803
Other Dtangible Assels i 174,059,719 131 391,322
Prepaid Expenses 17 5815424 §.534.328
Deferred Tax Assct 25 27772434 13.534.622

TOTAL ASSETS

1.929.394.228

1.576.444.150




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A5, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 2
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 31 DECEMBER 2019

{dmounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )

Andited Andited
Current Period Prior Period
31 December 31 December
Notes 2024 2019
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 1.030.954.848 852.110.178
Short=-Term Borrowings 335847784 189,542,901
Short-Term Bovrowings fFom Thivd Partics 3 335847784 189 542 90]
Bank Loans 3 J35.847.784 189542901
Short-Term Portions of Long-Term Bomrowings 24 682,175 202.965.742

Short-Term Portions of Lorg Term Borrowings from
Third Parties J 24682173 202 965742
Bawnk Loans 5 21.086.117 201067 885
Lease Linbilities 3 2396038 1897857
Trade Payables 526.584.529 421.671.065
Trade Pavables to Related Parties (=27 205.5058.402 179944 348
Treacle Pavables to Third Parties 0 230070027 24726717
Other Payables 2.672.811 LADLGEST
Other Payables to Related Parties a7 a9 a1ne
Other Pavables to Thivd Parties 7 2663702 [ 392 548
Derivative Instruments L] 21.327.299 -
Pavahles Related to Employee Bencfits T 13.285.626 6,822,947
Liabilities Arising from Contracts with Customers 17 4,680,955 -
Deterred Ineome 17 66,626,901 2,189,143
Short-Term Provisions 35.246.768 27.516.673
Short-Term Provisions for Emploves Benefits G 130670 4080612
{Hier Short-Yerm Provisions 13 24115008 23,436,061
Non-Current Liahilities 313.292.851 160.245.798
Long-Term Borrowings 268.030.070 107,259,138
Lowng-Term Borrowings from Thivd Parties 268 030,070 7259138
Bank Loans 5 265.620.743 103577340
Lease Liabilities 3 2400327 3081 798
Payables Related to Employee Bencfits 7 099,320 -
Liabilities Arising from Contracts with Customers 17 15,200 447 [9.945. 190
Dieferred Income 17 6,829,744 3.276.998
Long-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits 5] 32.134.270 27.764 472
EQUITY 1¥ 575.146.520 564.088.174
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company 575.146.529 564.088.174
Share Capital 18 £4.000.000 84.000.000
Adjustments to Share Capiral 18 30,149,426 3149426
Revaluation and Remessurement Earnings/Losses 404.179.620 406.769.583
Gain on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment I8 HIT 373045 4I7.373.045
GaindLosy on Kemeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans /8 (13.193.425) (H0.e03.462)
Restricted Reserves Appropriated from Profic 13 23.784.678 162.221.926
Prior Years' ProfitLosscs 18 19.384.487 {140.840.586)
Net ProfitLoss for The Year I8 [3.648.318 21787825

TOTAL LTABILITIES

1.929.354.228

1.576.444.150

=




ANATIOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY I"age No: 3
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 31 DECEMBETR 2019
(dmounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated)
Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
1 January- 1 Jaunary-
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
FROFIT OR LOSS
Revenue 149 1.241.213.253 1.422 987 899
Cost ol Sales (-) 19 {989.548.126) (1.164.119.765)
GROSS PROFIT (T.0OS5) 251605127 255.868.134
Administrative Expenses (-} 20 (75.551.728) (61.011.520]
Marketing Expenses {-) 20 {B4.011.758) {94,335.743)
Ttesearch and Development Expenses (-) 20 (3.630.463) (2.370.920)
Other Tneome from Operating Activities 22 69,490,080 53.539.766
Other Expenses from Operating Activilies (-) 22 {83.520.676) (39.900.305)
OPLERATING PROFIT/LOSS 72.440.582 114.589.212
Income from Investing Activitics 23 4793371 168.611
Expenses from Investing Activities (-) 23 (2271 (48.472)
OPERATING PROFIT/TLOSS BEFORE FINANCE EXPENSE 77.231.682 114.709.351
Finance lncome 24 175.027.632 60.092.527
Finance Lxpenses (-) 24 {231.726.783) (172.012.924)
PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM
(_-.'QNTI-.‘E'U IN(:DFERA'I'IUNS i 2.788.954
Tax Income/(Expense) From Continuing Operations 13.115.767 18.998.871
Current Tax (Expense) Incume 25 (474.554) (314.862)
Deferred Tax (Fxpense) Income 25 13.590.321 19.313.733
PROFIT {LO55) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING ;
S i 13.648.318 21.787.825
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 26 13.648.318 21.787.825
Profit (Loss) for the Year Attributable to 13.648.318 21.787.815
wiers of The Company 13.648.31%8 21.787.825
Earnings/{Losses) Per 100 Share from Continuing Operations 2 01625 0.2504
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE) 13.648.318 21.787.825
Ttems That Will Not Be Heclassified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans G (3.237.454) (2.922._142)
Gain (Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans, 647491 S44.47%
Tax Effect 25
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) (2.589.963) (2.337.714)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (EXPENSE) 11.058.355 19.450.111

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial stateken
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ANADOLU TSUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYE VE TICARET A% AND [T5 SUBSIDIARY Page No: 4
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERTONS ENDED 3T DECEMBER 2020 AND 31 DECENBER 2019

Sty exprested in Vieekich Livg waless ofierwing indicaed)
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taried Mulcs Cayilal Capital Esiiipusar Tram Fram Taaus _____Tra¥aar Compary Inisresls Eyaiiy
aved 1 Jzauary :
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Cuient Perfod _
Exhicais s of 1 Jeausny
130 [Meglaniag ol the
Feriad) 14 B 028 B0 116 ATInEE IS 362 142.221.528 {RdDEd ARy i Bl 56485174 . 554084174
Tulek Comprehonive
Tizuriie (EXPera) - - - 12 339, 365) - i L3418 514 _1LsEas : _ALESARE
Fnr e e Perind - - - f - ILEGETTN TLAALITIE - AT
e Cuonprckesaree
Erpras: i _ - - - [P ] - - (2 CAR BT - [T 18341}
Tmmfere - - - eI 160 FI5ATA (7570715} - - -
Balapred vy of 3L Necemher =
3030 (il ot the Period) 13 £ 0. i) 10,143,136 417373488 {11193 435) 21.704.67H TLEHANT LLARSIA TA 146518 - 575,144 528

The accompanying nates farm an integral part of Gese consolidated Goancial stabaools.




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIY SANAYI VE TICARET A.8. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )

Aundited
Current Feriod
31 December

Fage MNo: 5

Audited
Current Feriod
3 December

Mutes 2020 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 212.461.348 373.073.864
_ Profit {Loss) for The Year 18 13.648.3148 21,787.825
Adjustments to Reconcile Profit (T.oss) for The Year 08525706 150.747.743
Adjustments Related to Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1-11-12 43.956.394 40.096.069
Adjustments Related to Provision for Employes Benefits (Releascd) 16 7770474 7201064
Adjustments Related o Tax {Income) Exponse 25 (13.115.7a7) (18.998.871)
Adiustments Related to Provisions for Litigations 15-22 2241157 2061918
Adjustments for Tmpairment Loss
{Reversal ol Tmpairment Loss) of Receivables f-22 397.803 TH9.907
Adjustments Related to Interest Incoine 2224 (8.358.910) (6.797.474)
Adjustinents Related o Interest Expenses 22-24 S4,110.212 82285440
Adjustments Bolated to Unrealized Curreney
Translation Differences 5 Al.268.054 270951327
Adjustments Relaled o Fair Value Losses (Gaing) 4 21.716.332 (442 165)
Adjustments for ITmpairment Loss
{Heversal of Impairment Loss) of [nventorics 9 - (30kE.502)
Other Adjustments to Profit'{Loss) Reconeiliation | 980238 74253
Adjustments Related fo Other Provisions (Released) 15 21.330.581 25642916
Adljustments Relaled o Toss (Gain) on Disposad of Property, Mant
and Equipment 23 {4.791.100) (120.139)
Changes in Working Capital 19.838.953 216.898.705
Aujustments Related 1o Decrease (Increase) in 'lrade Recsivables il (23.788.733) (134,447 463)
Adjustments Related to Decrease (lncrease) in Inventories 9 (131.808.873) 219192397
Adjustments Belated to Decrease (Increase) in Other Receivables
from Ciperations 717 (18.796.872) 73247005
Adljustments Related by Tncreuse (Decrease) in Trade Mayables fi 105.713.320 Ba 996956
Adjustments Related to Increase (Decrease) in Other Payables from
[perations 717 04 BAR.T43 11.914.583
Adjustments Kelated to Increase (Docrease) in Other Asscts from
Operations o _ {13.330.630) (20.009.773)
Cash Generated from Operations 242.012.977 J08.434.273
Income Tax Returns (Paid) 15 (1.202.830) {739.10%)
Payments Related 1o Other Provisions 15 (22.912.701) (18.604 548)
Pavments to Provision of Employee Benefits 16 {5.430.008) (5.950.750
Cush Flows from Tnvesting Aetivities  (B6.311.536) (75.363.964)
Proceeds feom Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 10-23 5879114 183,788
Pavments for Purchaze of Property, Flant and Eguipment 10 (2R107.993) (16.553.519)
Payments for Purchase of Intangible Assety 11 {64.082.957) {58.994.233)
Cash Flows from I"illnntillgftti‘vities {209.526) (253.400.819)
Intercst Received B.0143513 A 809,030
Interest Paid 5 {43.217.300) (LR6E 1453
Procesds from Loans 5 00,467,723 T12.726.234
Cash Outflows from. Repayment of Loans 5 (739.819.7539) (R78.214.83T)
Cash Outtlows Related to Debt Fayments Arising from Leasc
Agreements 5 (3.654.829) (3E531IT
Met Tnerease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eqguivalents 175,030 646 44.309.081
Cash and Cash Equivalents at The Beginning of The Year 140,700,369 06,481,458
Cash and Cash Equoivalents at The End of The Year 4 266730255 140790569

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated linancial statemeri{s

i

ANADO
SAMNA
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THAL PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

{Amonnis expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise incicated )

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUF

Anadolu Tsuzu Otomotiv Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (the “Company™) was established in 1980, Principal activities
of the Company are comprised mainly of manufacturing, assembling, import and sales of commercial vehicles and also
procure and sales of related spare parts regarding to after sales service. The Company is registered to Capital Markets Board
of Turkey and the percentage of 15 of the Company’s shares have been traded on Horsa Tstanbul A5, since 1997,

The Company carries out its operations as 4 partnership formed by Tsuzu Motors T.td. Ttochu Corporation and Anadolu
Group Companies, The Company runs its manufacturing operations in a factory which is established in Caywovalocaeli.
The average number of employees as of 31 December 2020 is 847 (31 December 2019; 817).

The Company has been registered in Turkey, and the address ol the Company is Fatih Sultan Mchmet Mahallesi Balkan
Caddesi No: 58 Buyaka E Rlok Tepeiistii Umraniye, Istanbul.

The main shareholder and the controlling party of the Company is Anadolu Group Holding Anonim Sirketi.
A5 of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, details about the company’s subsidiary, which is subject to consolidation, is

below:
31 December 2020 31 December 2014

Company Name Principal Activity Capital  Participation Rate  Participation Rate
{%a) {%a)
Ant Smai ve Ticari Orinleri Pazadama A5. Trade of spure pasts T16.000 L 100

Approval ol Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statements for the period 1 January — 31 December 2020 approved by the Doard of Direclors on 24
February 2021 and signed by Independent Member of the Board ol Director Orhan OZER (Audit Committee Chairman)
and Ahmet Murat SELEK {Audit Commiltes Member), General Manager Yusuf Tugrul ARIKAN and Finance Director
Meger Fatih VURATL.

The Company and its subsidiary will be referred as (the “Group”} in the consalidated (inancial statements and notes to the
consolidaled financial stalements,

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i | Basis of Presentation

2.1.1  Statement of Compliance TAS

The enclosed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in line with Capital Markets Board (°C MB™),
Communiqué Serial: 11, No. 14.1 on “Principles on Financial Reporting in Capital Market”, promulgated in Oflicial Gazettc
No. 28676 dated 13 June 2013, Pursuant to Article 5 of the Communiqué, Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards (“TAS/TFRS”) enforced by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (*POA™),
and their relevant appendices and interpretations (“TAS/TFRS”) have been taken as basic.

Tn addition, the financial statements and disclosures are presented in secordance with the publication by CMB dated 7 June
2013,

The Company (and its Subsidiary registered in Turkey) takes the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC"), tax legislation and
Uniform Chart of Accounts introduced by Turkish Ministry of Finance as basic for book keeping and preparation of the
statutory financial statements. Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in Turkish Lira based on the historical
custs, as well as the financial assets and liabilitics presented in their fair values. Historical costs arc generally based un the
fair value of the amount paid for the assets. Consolidated financial stalements have been arranged by applying the required
adjustments and classifications to the statutory records prepared on historical cost basis in order to provide accurate
presentation in line with TAS/TFRS, The most important adjustment records are the application of consolidation
accounting, deferred tax caleulation, calculation of cmployee termination benefit and other provisions,

Currency Used
The financial statements of the Group’s each entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates (its functional currency). The results and financial position of the each entity ard eypressed in TL,
which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency used for presenting consolidate AR
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(dmounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicaled.)

NOTE 2 -BASLS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.1.2  Consolidation principles

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, including structured entities, are companies in the Group's control. The Group's control is provides for
exposure [0 variable returns from these companies, being eligible for these benefits, and the power to direot therm.
Subsidiaries are consolidated using the full consolidation method starting from the date when the control is transferred to
the Group, They are cxcluded from the scope of consolidation s of the date when the control is lost.

The purchasing method is used in accounting for group business combinations. The cost ol avquisition includes the fair
value of the assets transferred at the acquisition date, the liabilities incurred by the former owner of the company, and costs,
consisting of equily instraments issued by the Group. The acquisition cost includes the fair value of the assets and liabilities
transferred as a result of the contingent acquisition agreement.

The identifiable asscts, liabililies, and contingent liahilitics taken over during a business combination are measured at their
fair value on the acquisition date. For each purchase, non-controlling shares of the acquired company are recognised either
at their fair value or according to their proportional share in the net assets of the acquired company,

The table below sets out the subsidiarics and their ownership interests as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,

Voting power held Proportion of ownership

by the Group (%) interest (o)
Suobsidiary ) 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Ant Smai ve Ticari Uriinleri 100 100 {010 100

Pazarlama A5,
2.1.3  Adjustment of Financial Statements during High Inflation Periods

Tn aceordance with ChA’s decision numbered 11/357 on 17 March 2005, inflation accounting application has been
abolished as of | January 2005 for the companics operating in Turkey and preparing financial statements in accordance
with Turkey Accounting Standards. Accordingly, as of [ January 2005 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economics” (TAS 29) has not been applied.

2.1.4  Offsetting

“The financial asscts and liabilities in the consolidated {inancial statements are shown at their net value when a legal granted
permission, an intention of stating the consolidated financial statements with their net values and the financial asset and
liabilitics are arisen concurrently.

2.1.5 Comparatives and Adjustment of Prior Periods® Financial Statements

I'he Group's consolidated linancial statements for the current period are prepared in comparison with the previous perinds
in order to be able to determine the financial position and performance trends. The comparative information is reclassified
when necessary with the aim of ensuring consislency with the presentation of the current period's consolidated financial
statements and signilicant differences are disclosed,
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NOTL 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)
2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)

a) New and amended Turkish Financial Reporting Standards that ave effective as of 2020

Amendments to TFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments w0 TAS | and TAS 8 Definition of Maierial

Amendments to TVRS 9, TAS 39 and TFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to TFRS 16 COVIN-19 Related Rent Concessions

Amendments o Conceptual Framework Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in TIRSs

Amendments to TFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The definition of “business™ is important hecanse the accounting for the acquisition of an activity and asset group varies
depending un whether the group is a business or only an asset group. The definition of “business™ in TFRS 3 Dusiness
Combinations standard has been amended. With (his change:

= By confirming that a business should include inputs and 4 process; clarified that the process should be essential
and that the process and inputs should contribute significantly to the creation of outputs.

= The definition of & business has been simplified by focusing on the definition ol goods and services offered to
customers and other income from ordinary activitics.

s An oplional test has been added Lo facilitate the process of deciding whether a company acquircd a business or a
group of assels,

Amendments to TAS 1 and TAS 8 Definition of Material

‘I'he amendments in Delinition of Material { Amendments to TAS | and TAS 8) clarily the definition of ‘material’ and align
the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards.

Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39 and TFRS 7 fnterest Rate Benchimark Reform

The amendments clarity that entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements assuming that the
interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be
alterad as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

Amendments to TFRS 16 COFID-19 Related Rent Concessions

I'he changes in COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to TFRS 16) brings practical expedient which allows a
lessee o elect not o assess whether a COVID-19-related rent coneession is a lease modification. The practical expedient
applies only (o rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-1% and only it all of the following conditions
are met:

s the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or
less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

s any reduction in lease payments affects only payments onginally due on or hefore 30 June 2021 (a rent
concession would meet this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2021 and
increased lease payments that extend heyond 30 June 2021); and

s there are no substantive changes (o other terms and conditions of the lease,

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Earlicr application is permitted.

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in TFRSs

The references to the Conceptual Framework revised the related paragraphs in TFRS 2, TFRS 3, TFRS 6, TFRS 14, TAS
1, TAS B, TAS 34, TAS 37, TAS 38, TFRS Tnterpretation 12, TFRS Interpretation 19, TFRS Interpretation 20, TFRS
Tnterpretation 22, and SIC-32. The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after | January 2020, with early application permitted.

These standards, amendments and improvements have no impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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NOTE 2 - BASLS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)
2.1.6  Amcndments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)

b} New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not yet adopled the following standards and amendments and interpretations to the existing standards:

TFRS 17 fsurance Confracts
Amendments to TAS | Classification of Liahifities as Current or Non-Current
Amendments 1o TFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Amendments to TAS 16 Properiy, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to TAS 37 Cmerous Contraces — Cost of Fulfilling a Coniract
Annual lmprovements o TFRS Standards Amendmenis to TIRS 1, TFRS 9 and TAS 4/

2018-2020
Amendments to TTRS 4 Extension of the Temporary Fxemption from Applying IFRS 9
Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

TFRS 4 and TFRS 16

TERS 17 fnsirance Contraces

TFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform
mcasurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. Thess reguirements are designed to achieve the goal of
a consistent, principle-hased accounting for insurance contracts. TFRS 17 supersedes TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts as of 1
January 2023,

Amendments to TAS 1 Classification of Liabiliticy as Current or Nen-Crrrent
The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current

{due or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current.

Amendment defers the effective date by one year. Amendments o TAS 1 are eflective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after | January 2023 and earlier application 1s permitted.

Amendments to TFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Fromework

The amendments update an outdated reference to the Conceptal Framework in TFRS 3 without significantly changing the
requirements in the standard.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | Tanuary 2022, Farly application is permitted i1fan
entity also applics all other updated references (published together with the updated Concepiual Framework) at the same
time or earlier.

Amendments to TAS 16 Proceedy before Intended Use

The smendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condilion necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management, Tnstead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of

producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022, Early application is permitted.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.1 Basis of Presentation {cont’d)
2.1.6  Amendments in Standards and Interpretations (cont’d)

i) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective (cont’d)
Amendments to TAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specily that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the *costs that refate directly to the conlract’, Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to {ullilling contracts.

The amendments published today are effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2022. Early application
is permitted.

Annual lmprovements to TFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to TERS 1 First time adoption of Internitional Financial Reporting Standards

The smendment permits a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of TFRS | to measure cumulative translation ditferences
using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to TFRSs.

Amendments to TERS 9 Dinancial Tnstruments

‘T'he amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes in assessing whether Lo derecognize a financial liability. An entity
includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
cither the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.

Amendments to TAS 41 dgriculinre

The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of TAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological assct using a present value technique. This will ensure consistency with the
requirements in TFRS 13,

The amendments to TFRS 1, TI'RS 9, and TAS 41 are all effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2022,
Early application is permitted.

Amendments to TFRS & Extenston of the Temporary Fxemption from Applying IFRS 9

The amendment changes the fixed expiry date for the temparary excmption in TFRS 4 Tnsurance Contracts from applying
TEFRS 9 Financial Tnstruments, so that entitics would be required ta apply TFRS 9 for annua! periods beginning on or after
| January 2023,

Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TERS 4 and TFRS 16 Inferest Rate Benclmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 {Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and
TIRS 16) introduce a practical expedient for modifications required by the reform, clarify that hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the IBOR reform, and mtroduce disclosures that allow users to understand the nature and
extent of risks arising from the TBOR reform to which the entity is exposed to and how the enlity manages those risks as
well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from IBORs to alternative benehmark rates, and how the eatily is managing
this transition.

The amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and TFRS 16 are all effective for annual periods heginning on or
after | January 2021, Early application is permittad,
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
22 Eifects of Revised Accounting Policies (cont'd)

Accounting policy changes resulting from the [irst application of a new standard, if any, arc applied retrospectively or
prospectively in accordance with the transition terms. Changes without any transilion requirement, oplional significant
changes in accounting policies or significant accounting wirors are applied retrospectively and the previous period's
consolidated financial statements are restated. Changes in accounting estimates are applied in the current period if the
change is related to only one period, and if they are related to future periods, they are applied both in the period in which
the change is made and prospectively.

2.3 Summary of Signifieant Accounting Policies
2.3.1  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carred in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
at banks and highly liquid shorl-term investments, with maturity periods of less than thres months, which has insignificant
tisle of change in fair value.

232 Trade receivables and provision for allowance

Irade receivables as a result of providing goods or services by the Group directly to a debtor are carried at amortised cost
using original effective inlersst rates,

Provision for impairment of trade receivables is vstablished if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable
amount, being the present value of all cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted
based on the original effective interest rate of the originated receivables al inception,

If the impairment amount decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the release ol the provision is credited
tn ather income in the current period.

The Group collects most of the receivables from domestic vehicles sales through the “Direct Debit System” {DDE), Within
this system which is also named as Direct Collection System; the contracted banks warrant the collection of the receivables
within the limits granted to the dealers. Trade receivables are transferred by the contracted banks to the Group’s bank
accounts at the due dates.

2.3.3 Inventories

[nventaries are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The inventories of the Group mainly composed of trucks,
small trucks, midi buses, pickups and spare parts which belong to those vehicles. The cost of inventories is determined on
the monthly weighted moving average method. Cost of the finished and work in process good include raw materials, direct
labour cost, related general production expenses and exclude the cost of horrowing. Net realisable value is the cslimaled
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. The allocation of fixed
production overheads to the costs of conversion is based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. ldie time
expenses arising [rom the ceases in production other than planned in the factory’s annual production plan are not associaled
with inventories and are recognised as cost of finished goods,

2.3.4  Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation

While property, plant and equipment are presented on financial statement according to the adjusted values hased on the
effects of inllation as of 31 December 2004 for the asscts acquired before | Tanuary 20035, they are presented on the financial
statements by deducting accumulated depreciation from cost values for the assets acquired after 2005, As of 3| December
2017, lands and buildings have been monitored by revaluation method. Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line
method based on their economic lives, The following rates, determined in accordance with the economic lives of the fixed
assets, are used in caleulation of depreciation:

Type Useful Lives
Land Improvements 5-13
Buildings 2-50
Ivachinery and Equipiment 10-15
Molor Vehicles 4-10
Furmnitures and Fixturcs 3-10
Orther Property, Plant and Equipment : 10-20

AMA
AAN
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NOTTE 2 -BASTS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
23 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

234 Property, plant and equipment and related depreciation (cont’d)

Revaluation Method

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of (inancial position at their revalued amounts, being the fait value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those that would be determined using
fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, cxcept o the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognized in profit or loss, in which case the inerease is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
expensed, A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in proht
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the propertics revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Properties in the coursc ol construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognized impairment loss, Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Deprecialion of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assels are ready for their intended use,

Dhepreciation on revalued buildmgs 1s charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properlies revaluation reserve is transtorred direetly to retained
earmings.

Frechold land is not depreciated. Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Except for land and investments in progress, cost or valued amounts of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated uscful lives. Expected useful life, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed every year for the possible effects of the changes in estimates and accounted for prospectively if there is 2 change
in the estimates.

Assets held under lnance leases are depreciated over their expected usefil lives on the same basis ss owned assels.
Llowever, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be oblained by the end of the lease term, assets arc
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

Diepreciation calculations have been made for buildings subject to revaluation us of 31 December 2020 by taking into
consideration their remaining useful lives,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future cconomic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retivement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is detcrmined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss,

2,35  TIntangible assets and related amartisation

Tntangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less sccumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted four on a prospective basis,

Tntangible assels are comprised of software programme rights, brand and patent rights and development expenses.

Type Useful Lives
Rights 5-15
Other Intangible Assets 3-13
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (cont™d)

2.3.0 Goodwill

Guodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carricd al cost as established at the date of acquisilion of the business
less accumnulated impairment losscs, if any. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cach of the
Group's cash-generaling units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit rom the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated s tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. Tf the recoverable amount of the cash-gencrating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each assct in the unit, Any impairment losy
for goodwill is recognized direetly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent pericds,

On disposal of Lhe relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal,

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under “Tnvestments in associates”
heading,
2.3.7 lmpairment of asseis

All assets are reviewed for impairment losses including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 1 such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is presumed. The recoverable amount is presumed in each year-end for unusable
intangible assets. An impairment loss is recognised [or the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset or a cash-
generating unit related (o the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
value in use. Tmpairment losses are recognised in the stalement of income. Tmpaitment losses on assets can be reversed, to
the extent of previously recorded impairment losses, in cases where increases in the recoverable value of the asset can be
associated with cvents that accur subsequent to the period when the impairment loss was recorded,

2.3.8  Baok loans and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred. Tn subsequent periods,
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective yisld method; any difference between proceeds (net of fransaction
casts) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of income as financing cost over the periad of the borrowings.
When it comes to the assets which take lung lime to get ready to usage and sales, borrowing costs related to production or
construction are integrated to the cost of the asset,

2.3.9  Taxes on income

Tax liability on current period's prolit or loss includes current period tax and deferred tax. Current year tax liability consists
of tax liability on the taxable income calculated according to currently enacted tax rates and to the effective Lax legislation
as of balance sheel date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the lability method, on the temporary differsnces between the carrying values of assets and
liabilitics and their carrying. The tax value of assets and liabilities represent the amounts that will affect the tax base in the
future periods related to the assets and Habilities within the framework of tax legislation. Deferred tax is caleulated over
the tax rates that are expected lo apply in the period when Lhe tax asset or the liability will be realized by taking into
consideration the Lax rates and tax legislation in elfect as of the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, where delerred tax assets resulting from
deductible temporary differences are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible lemporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differenees and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future. Delerred tax assers and liabilitics related to income taxes levied by the same taxation
autharity are olfset when thers is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax habilitics,
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
2.3.10  Provision for employee benelits

The Group is abliged to pay termination indemnities to employees whose employment is terminated due to retirement or
due fo reasons other than resignation or behavior specified in the Labor Code, m accordance with the applicable law. The
retirement benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligation,

2.3.11  Provisions

Provisions arc recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 15
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate ol the amount can be
made. If the provision amount decreases, in the case of an event occurring after the provision is accounted for, the related
ammount is classified as other income in the current period,

2.3.12  Hesearch and development expenses

Rescarch expenditre is recognised as an expense as ncurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating Lo the
design and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will
b a success considering its commercial and technological feasibility, and only il the cost can he measured reliably, Other
development expenditures are recognised as expense as incurred. Subsidies received from Tiibitak are accounted for 4s
deferred income by Group and are offsct with amortisation expenses in the income statements in line with the useful life of
the completed projects. Development costs are directly recognised as expense. Development expenscs recognised as
expensc in prior periods are not subject to capitalisation in subsequent periods.

2.3.13  Warranty provision expenses

Warranly expenses are recognised on an accrual basis for amounts estimated based on prior periods’ realization.

2.3.14 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial stalements, shareholders, key management personnel and board members,
in each case together with their families and companies conlrolled by/or affiliated with them and associated COMpanivs are
considered and referred to as related parties. The transactions with related parties for operating activities are made with
prices which are convenient with market prices,

2.3.15 Foreign currency {ransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fureign currencies have been translated into TL at the Cenlral
Bank of Turkey's exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses arising
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilitics are recognised in the
statement of income.

2.3.16 Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statement of income are determined by dividing net eamings by the weighted average
number of shares that have been outstanding during the related year concerned.

In Turkey, companics can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares ("no-par shares”) to
existing shareholders from retained earnings and the revaluation surplus. For the purpose of eamings per share
computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus
shares issues without a corresponding change in resources, by giving them retroactive effect for the year in which they were
issued and for each earlier year,

23,17 Revenue recoguition
Commercial vehicle and spare part sales

The Group recognizes income according to the accrual basis, when the Group reasonably determines the income and
cconomic benefit is probable. Group’s revenues are comprised of sales of commercial vehicles-and the spage,parts of those
commercial vehicles. Net sales is determined by reducing customer retumns and sales discounts.




ANADOLU ISUZL OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 15
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
1.3 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies (cont™d)
2317 Revenue recognition (cont™d)

Commercial vehicle and spare part sales (cont’d)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are gratified:

s The significant risks and the ownership of the goods arc transferred to the buyer,

The Group refrains the managerial control over the goods and the effective control over the goods aold,
The revenue can be measured reasonably,

Tt is probable that the economic benefits related to transaction will flow to the enlity,

‘Ihe costs incurred or will be incurred in conjunction with the transaction can be measured reliably,

Warrantics given for sales cannul be purchased separatcly. These warranties are assured that the products sold are in
compliance with the pre-determined conditions. In this respect, the Group will continue to reco enize the warranty provisions
in aceordance with the provisions of the existing TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Conditional Assefs,

Service rendering

When the revenue [rom services can be measured reliably, the revenue is recorded in accordance with its completion level.
If the revenue cannot be measured reliahly, revenues are recognized as much as the recoverable amount of expenses that
are associaled with these revenues.

Tnferest income

Inlerest income is acorued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that assct’s net carrying amounl.

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders” rights to receive payment have been established.

Rent income
Rent income from investment properties is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term ol the respective leasc.

When there is significant amount of cost of financing included in the sales, the fair value is determined by discounting afl
probahle future cash flows with the yield rate, which is embedded in the cost of financing. The difference is included in
{inancial statements on accrual basis.

2.3.1%8 Reporting of cash flows
In the statement of cash flows, cash flows during the period are classified under operating, investing or [inancing activities.
The cash flows raised from operating activitics indicate cash flows due to the Group’s aperations.

The cash flows duc to investing activitics indicate the Group cash flows that are used for and oblained from investments
{investments in property, plant and equipment and financial investments).

The cash flows due to financing activities indicate the cash obtained from financial arrangements and used in their
repayment.

Cash and cash cquivalents include cash and bank deposits and the investments that are readily convertible into cash and
highly liquid assets with less than three months (o maturity.
2.3.19  Contingent assets and liabilities

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurretice of one or more uncertain fiture events not wholly within the control of the Group are not included in the
consolidated financial statements and treated as contingent assets or liabilities.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)
23 Summary ol Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2320 Government Granis

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the enlity will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and the grants will be received. Governmenl grants are recognized as income over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants and
assistance received for R&D purposes of the Group are explained in Note 14,

2321 TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRS 9, Financial instruments; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. This standard replaces
the guidance in TAS 39. Tt includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities;
it also includes an cxpected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment model. Group has carried
out valuation studies to determine the cumulative effect of the first transition and concluded that no changes should be made
to the comsolidated [inancial statements.

Financial assets

At initial recognition, the Group measurcs 4 financial asset at its fair value, excepl for trade receivables that do not contain
significant financing component, The Group measurcs trade receivables at their transuction price (as defined in TFRS 15)
if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component in accordance with TFRS 15 (or when the entity
applies the practical expedient) at initial recognition.

Lt the initial measurement of financial assets excepl at fair value through profitor loss, transaction costs dircetly attributable
lo the acquisition or export of such assets are added to or deducted from the fair value. Financial assets that are traded in
the normal course are recognized al the date of the transaction (delivery date).

The Group reclassifics financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair value through ather comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis ol both: (a) the Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets, and (b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, When, and only when, the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets. The Group applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains,
lnsses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Financial assets measured af amorlized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditivns are met

(2) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash fows and

{b) the contractual terms of the (inancial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest revenue of financial assets measured at amorlised cost is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is
calculated by applying the cffective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial assel except for:

(a) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asscts. For those financial assets, the Group applies the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

(b} financial assets that arc nol purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become
credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate Lo the amortised cost
of the financial asset In subsequent reporting pericds,

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset arc renegotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or
modification does not result in the derccognition of that financial asset, the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount
of the financial assel and recognises a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectalions
of rocovering a financial asset in its entlirety o a portion thereof
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.3 Swnmary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.3.21  TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)

First-time adoption of TFRS 9 “Financial instruments™ (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Financial qssets measured af fair valwe through other comprehensive income

A financial assel is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash Nowwrs
and selling financial assets and

{b) the contractual terms of Lhe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and [oreign exchange gais and losses, until the financial
assel is derecognised or reclassified. When the financial asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. IT
the financial assel is reclassified out of the fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category, the
Company accounts for Lhe cumulative gain or loss that was previously recognised in other comprehensive income in the
financial statements. Tnterest caleulated using the cilective interest method is recognised in profit ar Joss.

At initial recognition, the Company may make an irevocable clection to present in ather comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value of an investment in an equily instrument that is not held for trading.

Financial assels meastred af fair vale through profit or o

A financial assct shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets that are not designated as an effective hedging instrument against financial risk are also classified as
financial assels al fair value through profit or loss. The related financial assets are presented with their fair values and the
gains and losses arising from the valuation are recognized in profit or loss,

Impairment

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit Insses on financial assets that arc measured at amortized cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group applics the impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of u loss allowance for fmancial
asscts that are measured al fair value through other comprehensive income. Howsver, the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement ol financial
position.

At cach reporting date, the Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credil losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,

If, ut the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrumenl al an amount equal to 12-month expected credit lusses
except for purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assels, the Group only recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime cxpected credit losses since initial recognition as a
loss allowance at the reporting date,

The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables, contract
assels and lease receivables that do not contain a significant financing compunent, which is referved as simplified approach.
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cant’d)
2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (eont*d)

2.3.21 TFRS 9 Tinancial Instruments (cont’d)

First-time adoption of TFRS 9 “Financial instruments™ (cont’d)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value, During initial recognition of linancial liabilities not designated lair
value through profit or loss, all directly attributable transaction costs related to underwriting o fnancial liabilities, added
to this fair value,

The Group classifics all [inancial liahilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

(a) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Such liabilitics, including derivatives that are liabilities, are
subsequently measurcd al [air value,

(b) financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applics. 1 4 transfer does not result in derecognition because the Company has retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset in its entivety and recognises a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent perinds, the
Company recognises any income on the transterred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability.

{¢) conlingent consideration recugnised by an acquirer in a business combination to which TFRS 3 applies. Such contingent
consideration is subsequently be measured at [air value with changes recognised in profit or loss,

The Group does not reclassify any financial liability.
Reepsnition and derecognition of financial asseis

The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in the statement of financial position when the Group becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group derecogmizes a financial asset only when the contraciual
rights lo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it translers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assct to another party. Tf the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of awnership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 1f the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial assct and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing fir the proceeds received. The Group only derecognizes the obligation if the obligation delined in
the contract is lifred or canceled or i it expires on time.

2.3.23  Events alter the reporting period

Subscquent events and announcements related to net profit or even declared after other selective financial information has
been publicly announced, include all events that take place between the balance sheet date and the date when the balance
sheet is authorised for issue.

Tn the casc that events requiring an adjustment to the consolidated financial statements occur subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the Group mukes the necessary corrcetions on the consolidated financial statements,

2.4 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Evrors

Agcounting estimates arc made based on reliable information and using appropriate estimation methods. However, if new
ar additional information becomes available or the circumstances, which the initial estimates bascd on, change, then the
estimates are reviewed and revised, if necessary. 1 the change in the accounting estimates is only related to a sole period,
then only that period’s financial statements are adjusted. If the amendments arc related to the current as well as the
forthcoming periods, then bath current and forthcoming periods” financial statements are adjusted.

Significant accounting ertors are applied retruspectively and the consolidated financial statements of the previous period
are restated.

ANA
AN
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NOTE 2 -BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(cont’d)

2.4  Changes in Accounting Estimates and Exrors (cont'd)

2.4.1  Other Accounting Estimates

In instances where the accounting estimates alfect both current and forthcoming periods, then description and monetary
value of the estimate is diselosed in the notes to the financial stalements except instances whers the estimation of the effect
related to upcoming periods are not possible.

a) Deferred tax assets can be recognised only when sufficient taxable profit is likely to oceur in the upcoming perinds.
While evaluating, the future profit projections and the applicable approaches of unused losses within the scope of tax
legislation have been taken into consideration. Tf a tax advantage is likely, deferred tax assets are calculated based on
the deductible financial losses. As of 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible financial losses of TL 138,546.236
{31 December 2019: TL 158.700.909). The Group has recognized deferrcd tax assets of T 27.709.247 (31 December
2019: 1L 32.252.554) as sufficient taxable profit is likely to occur in the upcoming perinds over the portion of the
losses amounting to TT. 138.546.236.

b} The Group determined the warranty provision based on warranty costs for each vehiele model in previous years and the
remaining warranty periods for cach vehicle,

) Uselul lives of property. plant and ¢ouipment:
The Group reviews the estimated ussful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. The
Company may shorten or prolong the usclul lives and related depreciation of property, plant and equipment by taking
into consideration the intended use of property, plant and equipment, technological progress according to their types
ard other factors.

d) Revaluation ol land improvements and buildines:
T.and improvements, evaluation of buildings and machinery have been made by taking into consideration the current
market conditions. As a result of the revaluation, provision for impairment of the fixed assets with fair value lower than
the cost value is made.
The Group's land improvements and buildings have been revalued at 5 February 2018 by independent appraisals
acerediled by the Capital Markets Board. ‘The Group's land improvements and buildings have been revalued by
independent appraisals accredited hy the Capital Markets Board. The revaluation fund which is composed of the
difference between the book value and the fair value is oflset with deferred tax and shown under the equity as revaluation
fund. Revaluation is performed periodically.

¢) Estimated impaimment of poodwill

The Group annually tests goodwill for impairment. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units are determined
based on the caleulations of value in use.

f) Provision for Employinent Termination Benefils
Provision for employment termination benefits is caleulated by taking into account the severance pay ceiling and
recognized into the consolidated financial statements. Provision [or employment termination benefits represents the
estimated present value of the amount of retirement pay lizbility that the Group is liable to pay n the Luturs,

2.5 Important Developments related with the Current Period

Dhue to the COVID-19 pandemic affecting the whole world, There have been disruplions in the processes as a result ol the
slowdown in economic activities, supply, production and sales in the country and industry where the Group operates and
in the couniries where the majority of sales are, in parallel with the developments in the industry of the Group operates and
and in general economic activities

Group has been implementing several contingency plans to mitigate the potential negalive impacts of COVID 19 on the
Group's operations and financisl statements. During this process, there were no delays in both payments to suppliers and
collections ol receivables.

With the loosening of restrictions to prevent the spread of the pandemic, production and salcs activities continue as of the
reparting date.

While it cannol be measured reliably how long the COVIN-19 impacts will remain both in Turkey and around the world,
and how much it will spread, As the severity and duration of the effects become clearer, it will be possible to make a
more specific and reliably assessment for the medium and long term. Group management has evaluated the potential
effects of COVID-19 and has reviewed the key assumptions concemning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty on the consolidated financial statements as 31 December 2020. In this concept, Group has perlormed
impairment testing for financial assets, inventories, property, plant and equipment, goodwilland brandg-and has not
recognized any impairment loss as o 31 December 2020
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NOTE 3 -SEGMENT REPORTING

The field of activity of the Group established in Turkey is the manufacture, assembly, import and sale of maotor vehicles
and spare parts. The ficld of activity of the Group, the nature and economic properties of products, production processes,
classification according to customer risks and methods used in the distribution of products are similar. Moreover, the Group
is structured on an activity basis rather than being managed under separate divisions including different activities. Thus,
the operations of the Group are considered as a single activity division, and the outputs of the Group's activities,
determimation of the resources to be allocated (o these activities, and review of the performance of these activitics are
evaluated accordingly.

NOTE 4 - CASII AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash flow statements as of the end of the period:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash 3.221 92,839
Banks-Demand Deposits 13.725.357 3.512.789
Banks-Time Deposits (up to 3 months) 248.575.997 134.588.657
Other Liguid Assets (%) 4,783,248 609 260
Total 267087 823 140.803.554

{*) As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the balance in *Other Liguid Assets” is consist of dircetly debling system
assets and credit card receivables in hank of group.

There are no blocked deposits as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,

Cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash flow statements as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Liguid Assets 267.087 823 140,803,554
Tntercst Accruals (-) (357.368) (12.085)
Tuotal (Excluding interest aceruals) 266.730.255 140,790,569

The details of time deposits are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 20149
Amount Annual Average Amnonnt Annual Average
{ITL Equivalent) Interest Rate (%) {TL Equivalent) Interest Rate {%4)
TL 162,984,387 17,19 S0.824 166 10,98
Euri §5.253.940 n58 835,764 491 0,10
IS Txallar 337670 0,73 - -
Total 248.575.997 134.588.657

The Group does not have any time deposils with maturities longer than one month and the time deposits arc composed of
fixed interest rates.

NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The details of bank Inans as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are as follows:

a) Short-term Bank Loans

Bank Loans
Weighted Average Amount in TL
EMective Interest Rate % Original Currency Including Interest
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Eurn - 0,65 - 4,998,769 - 33.244.516
TL 9,38 18,59 135847784 156.298.087 3135847784 156.298.085
Tuotal 335.847.784 189,542,901

AMNAI
21,
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NOTE 5- FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (cont’d)

h) Short-term Portions of Long-term Financial Liabilities

Bank Weighted Average Aanount in TL
Loans Effective Inferest Rate % Original Curreney Including Interest

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Euro 2.50 4,71 244,653 21.063.198 2203 824 140,082,904
TL 13,57 18,25 [8.882.293 61,954 981 18.B82.203 0.984.981
Tatal 21086117 201.067 885

Finance Lease Liabilitics

Weizhied Averare Amount in TL
LEifective Tnterest Rate % Original Currency Including Interest
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Euro 4.1% 4,75 20,040 T2.098 261589 479492
TL. 13,00 11,50 3.334.46Y9 I.418.365 3,334 469 1.418.265
Total 3.596.058 1.897.857

¢) Long-term Bank Loans
Bank Loans

Weighted Average Amount in TL
Effective Inferest Rate %4 Original Currency Including Interest
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2012 2020 2019 2020 2019
Eure 1,74 402 [7.535.475 BATE SR 157.957.801 56.387.650
TL 12,09 13,03 107.662.942 47,189 6% 107 662.942 47.189.690
Total 265.620,743 103.577.340

As ol 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the payment schedulc of long-term loans is as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
1 to 2 years 128.775.589 465.381.747
2 to 3 years 102117516 30,247,179
1 to 4 years 12.911.632 8,549,695
4 to 5 vears £345.674 6,950,723
_More than 5 years 2 ~ 13,470,332 ) 11,447.996
Total 265.620.743 103.577.340
Finance Lease Liabilitics
Weighted Averase Amount in TT.
Effective Tnterest Rate % Original Currency Including Interest
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decembeyr 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Furo 4,15 4,75 48,400 75344 435982 S01.086
TL 13,00 11,50 1.973.345 3.180,712 1.973.345 3.180.712

Total 2.409.327 3.681.798
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NOTE 5- F'INANCTAL LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Financial net debt reconeiliation as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Opening balance 499.767.781 042.723.318
Interest expense 52604938 80570489
Tnitial recognition of lease liabilities in accordance with TFRS 16 - 2.637.031
Cash outflows from debt payments arising from lease agreements {3.654.829) (3.853.117)
TERS 16 changes in lease liabilities 3143375 6.093. 4635
Tnterest paid (45.217.300) (90.868.149)
Mewly obtained credits f00.467.723 T12.726.254
Loans repaid {754.815.733) (B78.214.837)
Exchange dillerence 81.268.094 27.953.327
Closing balance H28.560.029 499.767.781

NOTE 6- TRADE RECEIYABLES AND PAYARLES

I'rade receivables at period ends are as follows:

a) Short-term Trade Receivables

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Trade Receivables from Third Parties 300.979.689 401 4494445
‘I'rade Receivables from Related Partics 36.479.637 2573971
Rediscount Expenses (-) {2.460.199) (1. 742.641)
Doubtful Receivahles Te2. 710 Ind 907
Allowance for Doubeful Receivables (-} (762.711 {(364.907)
Total 424,999,147 402,325,773

As of 31 December 2020, the average term for trade receivables is 123 days (31 December 2019

Movements of provision for doubtful receivables are as follows:

31 December 2020

102 days).

31 December 2019

Opening Balance 364.907 175.000
Provisions it the Period 397,803 139,907
Closing Balance Tal. 710 364907

Diisclosures on the nature and level of risks in trade receivables are given in Note 28,

Trade payables at period ends are as follows:
b} Short-term Trade Payables

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Trade Payables to Third Partics 234043 838 243,892 572
Trade Payables o Related Parties 205.508.402 179.944.344
Rediscount on Trade Payables (-} (2.967.711) {2.165.855)
Total 526.584.529 421.671.065

As of 31 December 2020, the average term for trade payables is 152 days (31 December 2019: 142 days).

Disclosures on the nature and level of risks in trade payables are given in Note 28.
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NOTE 7- OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

a) Other Short-term Receivables
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Receivables from Tax Ollice (*) 2965263 13.117.897
Due [rom Personnel 929153 TRO.546
Deposits and Guarantess Given 3144 5,860
Total 3.897.560 13,904.303

(*) As of 31 December 2020, the amount of Group’s receivables was TI. 2.080.900 which consists of the receivables related
to the VAT refund request (31 December 201%: TL [0.804.936).

b) Other Long-term Receivables
31 December 2021 3 December 2019

Tieposits and Guarantees Given 186 186
Total 186 186

Nisclosures on the natire and level ol risks in other receivablus are given in MNote 28.

¢) Other Short-term Fayables

31 December 20240 31 December 2019
Payables Under Employee Benefit 13.285.626 6.822.947
T'ax and Funds Payables 2.480.982 [.246.968
Other Miscellaneous Payables [82.720 145.580
Total 15.949.328 8.215.495

Disclosures on the nature and level of risks in other payables are given in Note 28.

d) Other Long-term payables

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Payables Related to Employes Benefits 999320 -
Total 299,320 -

NOTE 8- DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Foreign Currency Options

As of 31 December 2020, the Group has 25 foreign currency options contracts with a nominal value of IPY 1.708.114.094,
which are determined as cash flow hedging instruments for possible raw material purchases and operational expenses that
are exposed to forcign exchange risk (31 December 2019: 30 foreign currency options contracts with # nominal value of
TPY 1.B1%,500,326).

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Fair Value Fair Value
Nominal Value  Asset Liahility Mominal Value  Asset Liahility

Option Contracts - - - 98.728.201 442,165 -
Forward Contracts 469.271.674 53132 (21.327.299) - - -

Total 469.271.674 53,132 (21.327.299) 98.728.201  442.165 -
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NOTE 9- INVENTORIES

Inventory balances as of period ends are as follows:

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Raw Materials 177.218.695 04 a09.705
Wark in Process Goods 623.328 97,702
Finished Goods 150,864,222 86.257.540
Trade Goods 45.650.801 34,922 655
Other Inventory 2.608.038 2309117
Import and Domestic Purchase Advances 14,146,200 40.135.681
Impairment in Finished Goods and Trade Goods (488.002) (488.002)
Total Inventories 300663282 258.854.407
Movement of Provision for Inventory Impairment 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Opening Balance 488,002 792.504
Provvision Released Due to Sales () - (318.261)
Current Period Provision (+) - 13.759
Closing Balance 458.002 458.002

As at 31 December 2020, total cost of sales which recognized in statement of profit or loss is TL 141,053.032 (31

December 2019: TL 170.741.804)




ANADOLY ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A5, AND ITS SURSIOTARY Puge Moz 25
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3i DECEMEER 2020

(dwmpicits exprasied i Tudish Ling wlers othensne indioaind)

NOTE 10- FROFERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A1 Degember 220

Dther  Conalruction

Fland, Tangitile In

Land Machimery and Furnitare and Fized Pragress ond
sl ¥alug Lomd  Tmprovements Buildings Equipment Vehicles Fixlures Azsels Advances Tutal
Qlpening Halanee az af 1 Tenuary 2020 od. 164,000 12.650.915 463.1T1.681 203.508.770 8.260.04% 4.241.161 774150 33807246 T2LYG2. 411
Additions = S0L557 - 20772573 TEE.244 E3.id4a - 3803 TS TH, 10740
Transfer fram Constnoction m Progres - TR 136347 fa b 4 - 207 6 11200 (7431630 -
Diisgosals = - - (414728 (1.635.813) . = z (1.470.562)
Cloging Balanes 5 at 311 Decomber 2020 a4, 1&4.000 13.591 902 463.336.024 230.154.250 6,020,376 4.532.174 THE.4%0 L.703.071 E14,305.842

Aceumulnted Depreciation

Dpening Halniere as ac 1 Tanun T 4611 (5,584,571 5,227,787 THESRT) o IHLOT4,161)
i Clharpe far the year + (438594 (1.595.25T) (1A14.405) 257 528) {1.314) - (TETHLTAT)

Dizpasals - - - A SBn L - - - 5041548

Cluxing Balunce ay ol 31 Derember 28211 = EETR (GGIUSAZG)  (IGLS6%.G36]  (4010.612) [3485.715)  (7TLA0L) - [maediLTI)

Mot Cavrying Value

Opening Oalnnce as ot | Jenunry 2020 BALEA000  3.744,009 HULAGL122 1,135,341 ITHSNTE  LAndii4 e JSRNTIG EST.GAEES0

Closing Balonce zs ot 31 December 2020 na164.000 4,125,112 IS GT.SHAESE 207,754 11404561 14898 1.703.071  S67.995.121

TL 10.250.273 of the deprecintion expenses has besn charged fo cost of sales and TL 836529 e research and developoent sxpeases and TL L2Z10A06 1o axsketing expenses, TL 16345388
to general administrative sxpenses and T1. 2432311 o B&D capstalzation as of 31 Decamber 2020,
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SAmennis c'cpm.'rmd o Tavkaedt Livo walesy sdharvize .'m'.l'."ca.rcu'._,l

NOTE 10- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT {cond*d)

31 December ZUTY

Ocher Canstrisetian

Flumng, Tongible in
Lamd Machinery and Furnilure and Fined Progress aod
ozt Yolus Lumd  Linprovemenis Buildimps Eyuipament Wehicles Fintures Asseld Advances Talal
Opening Onlnnce a5 ot [ fonuary 2019 94, 064.000 12,302,856  463.000.612 191,66 L.6TE 7485001 4439037 174129 143375 TTLS00LT5E
Ackditivos - 44069 2650 1L5TET L5390 046 HRLEZS - 24797451 16,553,519
Transber from Constustiog n Progocs - - TR EEN 8] - - - {12437 -
Tisposnls {156 248) {134.968) {291 Rid)
Cloging Balimce a2t 31 Deceabnee 2019 O, 4 100k 12.650.925 Je5 171681 HIS AT A 4G9 949 4. 241,161 11199 3380720 90 02411
Acewmuslnted Bngrnr.'inli.on
Diprning Dalnnce a5 nf | January 2009 -~ BAST05T)  [BLAAET) (IM569.430)  (lelsses)  [LOI9A36)  (766.095) EFTEN R ETTN
Charge far the year - {639 (E.VIT 532} (AEFLE4TY  (LIMLT0%) (272931} {2.582) - (19.458.247)
_ Dhapusals - - - AT 1414400 - X z 224217
Clnziis Radnmee as at 31 December 3019 - {3.906.9%6)  (61.200.559) [183374.461)  {S5R4.ATH) {3-22T_787) {743 5871 - (XEROT416L)
Met Carrying Yolue
ipening Onlnnce as nt | Innuary 2019 9d. 1L 000 1.&45.509 400507585 47082247 1.089.131 T.204 L3 375 560648627
Closing Dalnmce s at 3 December 2019 Sdi6L000  3THL02Y 40L96LIIZ S0.03530% 3.2 1013374 4612 3330726 557.688.250

Amanmang e T 11,534,035 of the depreviation expenses has been charged e vost of sales aml TL 915718 to ressarch aml developomend sxpenses amd TL L.853.300 10 marketing expenses,
T 1,526 220 to emeral ndministronve expenses and TL 2233264 10 BE 1 capitalizsion as of 31 Decemnber 2019,

Az of M December 2020 and 11 December 2019, the ner baok valoes of the Group's bmeds and budldinars vakhisl an historizal cost ane given helowe:

1030 2019

Lond Building: Land Buildings |
Cast 1.292 23% 42820177 L192.239 Le42.411
Accupralabed Demeciaton - 43,59 0ad} - (4% L0015

Mer Carrying Value 1.293.33% JLEATA14 1.253.23% 34173136
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MOTE 11 — INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31 December 2020

Other Construction

Development Intangible in Progress and
Cost Value Rights Expenses Assets Advanees [*) Total
Opening Balanee as at 1 January 2020 837305 133.984.121 28.193.853 4614603 217.631.882
Additinns 3 - 4,603,337 39,479 620 a.082.957
Transfer from Construction in Progress - 42,161,695 7833 (42.169.528) -
Closing balance as at 31 December 2020 837305 176.145.816 J2.807.023 TIA24.695  281.714.839
Accumulated Amortization
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2020 (1836007  (67.719.368) (18.137.592) - iB6.040.560)
Charge [or the period (61.02070  (19.126.230) {(3.427.3100 - 24.014.560)
Cloging balance a5 at 31 December 2020 [244.620)  (86.845.598) [23.564.902) = (11655 120)
Met Carcying Value
Opening Balance as at 1 January 2020 635,703 0. 204.753 10.058.261 54.614.603 131.591.322
Closing balanee as at 31 December 2020 502,083 80,300,218 9242121 71.924.605  171.059.919

(*) Az of 31 December 2020, TL 69.090.680,34 of the “Consuuction in Progress” amount is related to R&D projects, TL
1,237,106 is related to property, plant and equipments and the remaining part is related to other intang ible asset investments.

TT. 19,453 887 of the depreciation expenses ol intangible assels has been charged to cost of sales and 1L 34,633 to research
and development expenszes and TL 491 832 to marketing expenses, TL 1.734.060 lo general administrative expenses and
TL 2.900.128 to BR&D capitalization as of 31 December 2020,

31 December 2019

Construction
Development  Other Intangible  in Progress and
Lost Yalue Rights FExpenses Assets Advanees (*)  TOTAL
Opening Balance ps at 1 Janvary 2009 B08.220  102.847.686 22.275.566 32.706.177  158.637.049
Additions 29083 - 3EEQ.TET 33.084.361 58.994,233
_Transler from Construction in Progress - 31136435 39,500 (31.175.935) z
Closing balance as 3t 31 December 2019 837305 133.984.121 28.195.853 S4.614.603  217.631.852
Accumulated Amortization
Opening Halance as at 1 January 2019 (125.887) (53.116.665) (13.834.216) - (670176.768)
Charge fortheperiod (57.713) (14.602.703) (4.303.376) - (18.963.792)
l’_!]u:.n.-inE:I:-alanu: agat 31 December 2019 (1836003 (07.719.368) (18.137.592) - (86040560
Mel Carrving Value
Opening Bulanee as at | January 2019 682333 49.731.021 8.441.350 32.706.177  91.560.881
Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 633.705 66.264.753 10.058.261 S4614.603  130.591.322

{*) As of 31 December 2019, TL 53.233 874 of the "Construction in Progress” amounts 1o R&D projects and the remainder
relates to other intangible assets.

TL 11,663,409 of the depreciation expenses of intangible assets has been charged to cost of sales and T1. 162,014 to research
and development expenses and TL 476.649 1o marketing expenses, 1L 1.086.503 to general administrative expenses and
TI. 2,487 842 to R&D capitalization as of 31 December 2019,
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NOTE 12 — RIGIIT-0F-USE ASSETS

The Group started to apply TFRS 16 Leases Standard for the frst time on [ January 2019, For the leases thal are previously
classified as operating leases in accordance with TAS 17, a right-of-use asset is included in the condensed consolidated
financial slatements over the same amount as lease lability restated according to all lease payment amounts that are prepaid
and accrued as of 1 January 2019,

As of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the right-ol-use assets’ balances of depreciation assets and depreciation
expenses in the relevant period are as follows:

Cost Value Total
Upeni.EEaEl;:z as at 1 Jan uAry 202!] 3.413.132
Additions - 3.39%.412
Closing balanee as at 31 December 2020 7.012.545

Accumulated Amortization

{flpcnling Balance a5 1t 1 January 2020 -
Charge for the Period ] (1.682.030)

Closing balance as at 51 December 2020 (1.682.030)

Net Carrying Value

Opening Balance as al | January 2020 P P 3.413.133

Closing balanee as ai 31 December 2020 5.330.515

TL 655.493 of depreciation expenses has been charged to cost of sales, and TL 1,966,438 to general administration expenses
as of 31 December 2020.

Cost Value

Opening Balance as al | January 2019 34135133
Additions 3500412
Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 T.012.545

Accumulated Amortization

Opening Balance ay at 1 .Janoary 2019 -
Charge for the Period (1L.6B2.030)
(.'Insin_gﬂa!nnm as at 31 December 2019 (1682030
Carrying Value

Opening Balance as at 1 January 2019 3.413.133
Closing halance as at 31 December 2019 5.330.515

TL 586.998 of depreciation expenses has been charged to cost of sales, and TL 1.095.032 to general administration expenses
az of 31 December 2019,

NOTE 13 - GOODWILL

Az of 31 December 2020, there i3 goodwill amounted to TL 2.340.995 (31 December 2019: TL 2.340.995), The Group has
calculated the recoverable amount of goodwill and no impairment is recognized. Tn this caleu ion, a discopmt rate of 24%
{2019: 24% per annum) was used with S-year cash flows prepared based on the budgets appro

AM
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NOTE 14- GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

The cash support amount, which was collected from TUTRTTAK in relation to R&D activitics in 2020, is the TL 3.215.208,
The cash support amount, which was collected from TUBITAK in relation to R&TD activities in 2019, was the TL 544.054.

The Group has R&D expenses which can be utilized for tax calculations with an amount of TL 252.042.519 as of 31
December 2020, As per amendment made in Article 35 ol the Law on Supporting Research and Development Mo, 3746
which became effective on | April 2008, R&D deduction rate from which will be benefited for the expenses of R&IDY has
heen increased from 40% (o 100% (TL 182.309.407 as of 31 December 20197,

In order to benelit [rom the incentives and exemptions provided in line with the Law MNo. 5746, the Group applied 1o the
Ministry of Tndustry and Commerce 1o become an R&D centre. On 3 June 2009, the Group was entitled to become an
R& ) centre,

NOTE 15— PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Oiher Short-term Provisions

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Warranty Provisions 13.412.222 11,436,342
Provision for Lawsuils £.249.729 4.174.012
Provision [or Premium and Commission 4.453.147 7.797.705
Other - 28.002
Total 24.115.098 23.436.061

Woavements of provisions during the period are as follows:

Provision for

Warranty  Provision for Premium and
Provisions Lawsnits Other Commission Total
Opening Balance as al
1 January 2020 11.436.342 4.174.012 28.002 7.797.705 23.436.061
Additions During The Period 16.897.434 2241157 - 4433147 23.591.738
Paid During The Period (=) (14.521.554) (165.440)  (28.002) (7.797.705) (22.912.701)
Clusing Balance as at
31 December 2020 13.412.222 6.249.729 - 4.453.147 24.115.098

Provision for

Warrcanty Provision for Premium and
Provisions Lawsuits  Other Comumnission Total
Opening Balance as at
1 January 2019 0.647.216 4.355.690 - 329869 14.392.775
Additions During The Period 17.818.209 2063918  28.002 7.797.705 27.707.834
Paid During The Period (-) {16.029.083) (2.245.596) = (3R9.869)  (18.664.548)
Closing Balaoce as at
31 December 2019 11.436.342 4.174.012 28.002 7.797.705 23.436.061

Lawsuits against the Group:

As of 31 December 2020, there are 68 ongoing lawsuits filed against the Group due to the cancellation of employment
termination and other claims for employment and othet compensation. Based on these lawsuits, TL 6.249.729, which is
recognized based on assessments of the lawyers, was reserved as lawsuit provision (as of 31 December 2019, the lawsuit
provisions amount 15 TT. 4.174.012).
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NOTE 15— PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)
Mortgages und guarantees on assets:

There are not any mortzages and goarantees on assets.

Total insurance coverage on assets:

Total insurance coverage on assets 13 TL 1.094.454.746as of 31 December 2020 (3 December 2019: TL 1.032.943 537).

Contingent linbilities which are not shown in liahilities listed are as follows:

Type 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
iven Letters of Guarantee 283.739.370 317.956.692
Total 283.730.370 317.956.692

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

A, CPMs given in the name of its own legal personality 283.739.370 317.956.6%92
i. Letter of (Guarantee 283.739.370 317.956.692

B. CPMs given oo behall of fully consolidated enmpanies - -

. CPMs given in the normal course of business aclivities

oo behalf of third parties = "

D. Total amount of other CPMs & o
1. Total amount of CPMs given on behalf of the parent - -

ii. Total amount of CPMs given o on behalf of

other Group companies which are not in scope of B and C
iii. Total amount of CPMs given on behalf of

third parties which are not in seope of C

Total 283,739,370 317.956.092

The ratio of other CPM is given hy the Group to the Group’s equily is 0% as of 31 December 2020 {0% as of 31 December
2019).

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk since its loreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are firmed of
different currencics. In order to hedge its foreign currency position due to the fluctuations in the foreign exchange parities,

the Group enters into forward contracts.

NOTE 16 — EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) Short-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Provision for Employee Rights and Salaries B.799.026 2.950.000
Prowvision for TInused Vacation 2.332.644 1.130.612
Total 11.131.670 4.080.612

Short-term provisions for employee benefits consist of provisions that were caleulated and unpaid as of the end of period,
Movements of the provision for unused vacation during the period are as lollows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Opening Balance 1.130.612 B43.195
Recognized provision during the period 4.155.242 3,340,386
Paid During The Period (2.953.210}) 3.052.9649)

Total 2.332.644 1.130.612
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NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

by Lomg-Term Provisions for Employee Benefits

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Frovision for Employment Termination Beneiits 312.134.270 97 764 472
Total 32.134.270 27.764.472

Within the framework of current laws in Turkey, it is obligatory to make the severance pay of cach employee who has
completed one year service period, has been paid olf regardless ol any related reason, has been called-up for military service
along with men who have completed 25-year service period, women who have completed 20-year service period or those
who have completed age of retirement (38 for women, 60 for men). Because there is not any funding obligation for the
severance pay provision in Turkey, any special fund is not allovated in the financial statements.

The severance payments ars calculated over 30-days gross salary for each service year. Primary assumption is that ceiling
liahility set for each service year increases in proportion o inflation. o parallel with this, real discount rate which is cleared
of the potential inflation impacts is considered at the implementation stage. The severance pay cap is revised in every six
manths, the celling amount of TL 7.638,96 (1 January 2020: TL 6.730,13) applicable as of | Tanuary 2021 has been regarded
for the calculation of the Group's provision of severance pay.

Moreover, the severance payments are not made for those who leave the job with his'her wish; estimated rate related to
these severance pay amounts that will remain in the Group's account is considered.

Considering the Liahility of Severance Pay are related to the next periods ss per TAS 19, current values of the severance
payments which will be made as of the balance sheet date are calculated to determine an approximate inflation expectation
whose net difference refers a real discount rate and find an appropriale discount rate,

The actuarial assumnptions considerad in the calculation of the provision for employment termination benefits arc as fullows:

Annual Met Discounl Rate (%) 4,15 3,72
Turnover Rate to Estimate the Probability of Relirement (%) 4,91 4 41

The provision calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising fruom the
retirement of the cmployees is recognized to the consolidated financial statements,
Movements of the provision for employee termination henefit during the period are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 Decemnber 2019

Opening Balanee 27 764,472 23885435
Interest Cost 1.154.677 488,760
Gain/{Loss) on Remeasurement of Delined Benelit Plans 3.237 454 2922142
Paid within the period (2.482.888) (2.903.783)
Current service cost S 2.460.555 2971.918
Closing Balance Er N kL 27.764.472

NOTE 17- OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Frepaid Expenses

3 December 2020

3 December 2019

Advances Given 13,718,429 6365848
Prepaid Fxtended Warranty Expenses 2.434.978 1.212.612
Prepaid Insurance Expenses 223.007 146,416
Prepaid Subscriplion Expenses 71.949 55.492
Prepaid Advertisement Expensces 736635 178.749
Prepaid Maintenance Expenses 339.669 1.116.633
Prepaid Other Expenses 052.974 &04.096
Total 17.834.671 9.879.886
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NOTE 17- OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITTES (cont’d)
) Other Current Assets

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Deferred VAT 41792 419 26,467,386
Other Current Assets 2.541.977 4322209
Total 44.334.396 J. 78,595

c) Prepaid Expenses

31 December 20240

31 December 2019

Prepaid Extended Warranty Expenses 4,902,490 7.337.468
Prepaid Expenses 912.934 1.176.860
Total 5.815.424 8.334.328

d) Deferred Income (Short-Term)

31 December 2021

31 December 2019

Order Advances Received 65.608.817 1476727
Delerred lncome (*) 1018084 T12.466
Total 66,626,901 2.189.193

(*) The amount of cash incentives received for the company’s R&D activities and which should be transferred to the income
statement for upcoming months as of 31 December 2020 is TL 983,880 (31 December 201%: R&LD cash support income that
will be tranaterred o the income statement for upcoming months is TL 369.845).

e) Liabilities Arising from Contracts with Customers (Short-Term)
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Deferred Maintenance and Repair Income 4.680.955 -

Tuotal 4,680,955 =

f) Deferred Income (Long-Term)
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Order Advances Received 3.962.8461 4,593,157
Deferred Income (%) 2,866,883 683,841
Total 6,829,744 5.276.998

(*) Lhe amount of cash incentives received {or the company’s R&TY activities and which should be transfomred (o the income
staterment for upcoming months as of 31 December 2020 is TL 2,866,883 (31 December 2015 T1 6583.341).

o) Liahilities Arising from Customer Contracts (Long-Term)

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Deferred Maintenance and Repair Income 15.29%.447 19,943,140

Tutal 15,299,447 19.945.190

NOTE 18- SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS
a) Capital / Elimination Adjustments
As of 31 December 2020, the share capital of the Company is TL 84.000.000 (31 December 2019: TL 84.000.000),

This share capital 15 divided into 8.400.000.000 in total, including 4.515.314.51 1 A Group registered shaces, 2,498,204 373 B
Group registered shares, 1.386.481.116 C Group beurer's shares, each with nominal value of | (one) Kr. The distribution of
this share capital on the basis of share group is as follows:

ANMA
o A
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NOTE 18- SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS {cont’d)

31 December 20210

Total Share
Sharcholders Group A Group B Group C Amuount Share (%)
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding ALS. 44.844.772 % 1l.690.629 46.535.401 55,40
Lsuzu Motors Ltd, - 14.275.509 - 14.275.509 16,99
ltochu Corporation Tokyo - 7.045.322 - 7.948.322 9,46
Itochu Corporation [stanbul - 2738212 - 2.758.212 3.28
Other 308.373 - 12,174,183 12,482 556 14,87
Total 45,153,145  24.982.043  13.804.812 &4.000.000 100,00
31 Decemnber 20149

Total Share
Shareholders Group A Group B Group C Amount Share (%)
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A S. 44844772 - 1690629 46.515.401 55.40
Tsuzu Motors Ttd. - 14275509 - 14,273,509 16,99
Ttochu Corporation Tokyo - 7.048.322 - T.948.322 .46
Itochy Carporation Tstanhul - 2758212 Z 2758212 328
Other 108.373 - 12,174,183 12.482.556 14,87
Taotal 45.153.145 14.981.043 13.564.812 54.000.000 100,00

b) Privileges Granted to the Share Groups

The Company is directed by the fourtcen members of the Board ol Direclors elected among shareholders by General
Assembly in accordance with the regulations of Turkish Commercial Code.

Four members of the Board of Directors are elected from the candidates nominated by the shareholders of Group B and the
remaining members of the Board of Directors arc clected from the candidates nominated by the shareholders of Group A
by the General Assembly.

Foquity 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Paid-in Capital 84.000.000 24.000.000
Capital Tnflation Adjustment Diflerence 30.149.426 30.149.426
Teserves on Retained Earning 23.784.678 162.221.926
Retained Larnings 19.384.487 {140.840.586)
Gain / (Loss) on Revaluation and Measurement 417.373.045 417373045
{T.0sse3) on Remeasurement of Delined Benefit Plans (13.193.423) (10.603.462)
Met Profit / (Loss) for The Period 13.645318 21.787.825
Shareholders® Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Group 575.146.529 S564.088.174
Total Shareholders’ Equily 575.140.529 S04.088.174

¢} Restricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit

Restricted reserves appropriated from profit are comprised of legal reserves and other reserves.

Restricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Legal Reserves 23.784.678 23.784.678
Beal Estate Sale Profil Exemption - 138.437.248
Tuotal 162.221.926 162.221.926

Turkish Commercial Code (*TCC™) stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory profits at the rate
of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-in capilal. The second legal reserve is
approptiated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in capital, Under the TCC,
the legal reserves can be used only to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-
in capital. Tn addition, the Group's profil on the sale of real estate, which is considered to be within the scope of Article 3/e
of Corporate Income Tax Taw No. 5520, is classificd to retained camings since 5 year exemplion period is completed.




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET AL, ANDITS STTBSIDIARY Piage No: 34
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 18- SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER FQUITY ITEMS (cont’d)
d) HRetained Earnings/Losses
The Group's prior years' income details as of period ends are as follows:

Retained Earnings/Losses 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Lxtraordinary Reserves 151.914.057 9.661.444
Legal Reserves lnflation Difference 24.820.489 24.820.489
Retaimed Earnings / {Losses) - (137.350.059) (175.322.521)
Total - 19.384.487 (140.840.586)

Quoted companies make profil distributions as follows:

If the amount of profit distributions caleulated in accordance with the net distributable profit requirements of the CMB doces
not exceed the statutory net distributable prolit, the tolal amount of distributable profit should be distributed. However, no
profit distribution would be made if any financial statements prepared in accordance with the CMB or any statutory accounts
carrving net loss for the peried. In accordance with the ChB's decision dated 27 January 2010, it is decided not to bring
any oblipation for any minimum profit distribution about dividend distribution which will be made for publicly owned
companics.

Inflation adjustment on Equity; the canying amount of extraordinary reserves could have been ulilised in issuing bonus
shares, cash dividend distribulion and offsetting accumulated losses. However, equity inflation adjustment differences will
be liable to corporate tax if it is used in cash profit distribulion.

Group's retained earnings is TL 19384 487 based on the [inancial stalements prepared in according with TAS/TFRS
Financial Reporling Standard for the period ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: TL { 140.840.5867).

Tn accordance with the Communiqué No:XI[-29 and relaled announcements of TAS/TFRS, effective from | January 2008,
“Share Capital”, “Restricted Reserves” and “Share Premiums™ shall be carded al their statutory amount. The valuation
differences (such as differences from inflation adjustment) shall be classified as follows:

- “the difference arising from the *Paid-in Capital” and not been (ransferred to capital yet, shall be classified under
the “Capital Adjustment to Share Capital™;

- the difference due to the inflation adjustment of “Restricted Reserves” and “Share Premium®™ and the amaount has
not been utilised in dividend distribution or capital inerease yet, shall be classificd under “Retained Earnings”, Other
cquity items shall be carried at the amounts caleulated based on CMB Financial Reporting Standards.

NOTE 19- REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

1 January — 1 January —
Revenue 31 December 2020 _ 31 December 2019
Domestic Sales R78.241.24] 689.547.030
Foreign Sales 425926312 04352370
{Hher Income 10.831.088 11.850.304
Sales Total (Gross) 1.314.998.041 1.505.749.713

Sales Discounts (-]

(73.78538%)

(32.761.814)

Sales (Net)

1.241.213.253

1.422.987.899

Cost of Sales

(989.548.126)

(1.164.119.7635)

Giross Operating Profit

251.665.127

Cost of sales are summarised as follows;

Cost of Sales

Fauw Materials and Supplies Expenses
Dhirect Labor Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Other Produelion Costs

1 January -

31 December 2020

158.808.134

1 January —
31 December 2019

(810.658.546)
(53.929.397)
(30.459.653)
{14.280.689)

(800.449.209)
(53.524.460)
(23.784.442)
(16.050.685)

Taotal Clost of Production

(909.328.285)

(893.808.796)

Change in Goods lnventory

(4.322.299

(97.891.078)

Cost of Trade Goods Sold (141.053.032) (170,741 .804)
Cost of Other Sales (34891081 A1.678.087)
Cost of Sales (989.548.126) "\ i
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NOTE 20- ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

EXPENSES

Personnel Expenses
Depreciation Expenses

_Other

a} Research and Development Expenses 31 DEE;‘::_::::;“%H 3 TJE:E:I‘:};I::&E:]YI;
(1.949.987) (434891

(871.182) (1.077.730)

Outsourced Henefits and Services (290.029) (632.001)
(528.265) i(376.298)

Tutal Research and Development Expenses (3.639.463) {2.570.920)
1 January — I Jaonwary —

b} Marketing Expenses

TPersonnel Expenses

Lxport Lixpense

Transporlation, Freighl Expenses
Royalty Expenses ()

Domestic Sales Expense
Advertisement Expenscs

Business and Service Expenses
Warranty Expense Provision
Digpreciation Expenses

Travel Expenses
Representation-Hospitality Expenses
Tax, Dutics and Fee Expenses
Insurance Expenses

Maintenance and Bepair Expenses
Consulling, Audil Expenses

Other

31 Decemhber 2020

31 December 2019

(23.905.709)
(15377.996)
(9.638.304)
(8.828.674)
(7.925.796)
(3.820.395)
(2.946.219)
(1.975.879)
(1.702.238)
(987.611)
(604.056)
(496,404)
(468.589)
(129.864)
(29.929)
(5.174.005)

Total General Administrative Expenses

_ (84.011.758)

(17.982.860)
(18.036.057)
(15.032.371)
(5.614.994)
(13.309.500)
(6.690.786)
(2.609.856)
(1.789.127)
(2.329.950)
(3.352.502)
(1.470.827)
(543.050)
(393.535)
(128.224)
(314,293)

(4.537.811)

(94.335.743)

(*) Asof 31 December 2020, TT, 8.720.843 part of TL. 8.828.674 amounted royalty expenses is related to license agreements
with Isuru Motors Lid. Tokyo, TL 107.829 is related to license agreements with Isuzu Motors International Operation
Thailand {As of 31 December 2019, TL 5.178.167 part of TL 5.614.994 smounted royally expenses is related W lcense
apreements with Tsuzu Motors Ttd. Tokyo, TL 348.128 is related to license agreements with Isuzu Motors Infernational
Operation Thailand and TL 88.6435 Is related to license agreements with AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A.5.).

¢} General Administrative Expenses

Personnel Lxpenses

Business and Service Expenses
Consulting, Audit Expenscs
Depreciation Expenses

Insurance Expenses

Tax, Duties and Fee Expenses
Maintenance and Repair Expenses
Representation-Hospitality Expenses
Travel Expenses
Rent Expenses
Other

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
33.577.5135) (23.255.087)
(13.032.667) (11.024.623)

(12.174.803)

(10.752.938)

__ T 0[:_:| {J‘re_uu}é}":@'iimmslrmiw Expenses

(5.385.086) (3.707.758)
(3.272.064) (3.124,035)
(2.754.247) (2.929.624)
(273.423) (211.632)
{158.239) (490.877)
(65.880) (535.685)
(60.129) (202.724)
(4.771.675) (4.775.637)
(75.551.728) (61.011.520)
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NOTE 21- EXPENSES BY NATURE

Direct Raw Material and Supplies Costs
Cuost of Trade Goods Sold
Change in Finished Goods and Semi-Vinished Goods

{141.033.032)
64.322.299

Page No: 36
1 January — 1 January —
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
{810.638.5346) (B00.449.209)

(170.741.804)
(H7.E9L.078)

Petsonnel Expenses {113.362.608) (95248 198)
Depreeiation And Amortisation Expenses (38.418.15%) (30899 880)
Other {113.581.029) (126.807.77%)

Total Expenses

(1.152.751.075)

{1.322.037.948)

Expenses by nature include cost of goods sald, marketing, selling and distribution expenses, general administration expenses

and research and development expenscs,

NOTE 22- OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Othér Income from Operatiog Activities: 31 necirf.?,'l:’éﬁéﬁ 31 mln{;]::azrlﬂ;
Foreign Exchange Income on Trade Receivahles and Payables 35.463.665 31.080.787
Sale Support ITncome 3211138 1.006.440
Service lncome 2.585.423 4,121,761
Export D.F.LF Support 1.155.011 153.615
Delay Interest Income 1.018.209 3.250.030
Discount Tncome on Trade Payables 801856 6.551.714
Tncentive Income 733.3099 1.861.704
Iient Tnoome 549005 479937
Tubitak R&D Tncentive 418.131 441189
Insurance Indemnity Tncome 200,678 211,746
Released Provisions - 181.678
Dither Tncome 3.362.565 4.159.165
Total 69,499,080 53.53%.766
; ooy 1 January — 1 January —
Other Expense from Operating Activities: 31 Decemhber 1%:4] 31 December myi 0
Foreign Exchange Expense on ‘Trade Receivables and Payables (79.692.068) (32.634.717)
Lawsuit Provisions (2075717 -
Discount Income on Trade Receivables {747.01% (4.637.4300
Alowances for Doubtlul Receivables {397.803) {189.907)
Donations and Contributions (343575 (33.080)
Other Expenses {2.264.496) (2405371
Total (85.520.676) (39.900.505)
NOTE 23- INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
. - 1 January — 1 January —
Income From Investing Activities 31 December 2 ﬂ};ﬂ 31 December 21::’1 9
Gain on Sale of Machinery and Equipment 4793 371 168.611
Total 4,793,371 168.611
: = 1 .January — 1 January —
Fxpenses from Investing Activities 38 Decerber 2?2“ 31 December Eﬂ}; 9
Laoss on Sale of Machinery and Equipment (2.271) (48.472)
Total __ (2.271) (48.472)
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NOTE 24- FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Finance Incomes 1 January - 1 January —
' ' ) 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Foreign Exchange Gain 167.686.945 56.5835.083
Tnterest Income 7.340.707 3.507.444
Total 175.027.652 60.092.527
Finance Expense: 1 January— 1 January —
) 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Foreign Exchange Losses (170.427.017) {B0.889.393)
Interest Expense {52.276.140) {80,949 .496)
Expense from Derivative Transactions (21.274.167) (442.165)
Letter of Guarantes Expenses (2.761.641) {5349.276)
Forward Purchase Expensc {1.834.072) {1,338.944)
Other Finance Lxpenses (3.153.746) (3.043.650)
Total (251.726.783) (172.012.924)

NOTE 25- TAXATION ON INCOME {(INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)

The Group’s tax expense {or income) is comprised of current period corporate tax expense and deferred tax expense (or
incomea).

K 1 January — 1 January -

) 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Current Income Tax Provision (=) (474.554) (314.862)
Deferred Tax Tncome / (Expense) (lncome Statement) _13.590.321 19.313.733
‘I'ax Income / (Expense) - Income Statement 13.115.767 15.998.871
I'ax Tncome / (Expense) (Comprehensive Income Statement) 647481 384428
Total Tax ITneome / (Expense) 13.763.258 19.583.299
31 December 2020 3 December 20149

Current Corporate Tax Provision 474.554 34 862
_ Less: Prepaid Taxes ) (1.202.830) {739.109)
_ Tax Payable - (728.276) (424.247)

As of 31 December 2020, the amount of corporate tax paid in advance is amounted to TL 728.276 which is porlion of
exceeding the corporation lax amount to be paid and it is included in the Assels Related to Current Period Taxation (31
December 2019: T, 424.247).

i) Pravision for Curreni Period Tax

The Group is subjected to Corporate Tax in Turkey. Mecessary provisions in supplementary Hnancial statements have been
made for estimated tax liabilities regarding Group’s operations in the current period.

The corporate tax to be acerued over the taxable profit is caleulated by adding non-deductible expenses to the accounting
profit; deducting investment and research and development allowances, income that is not subjected to taxation and the
dividends received, [rom companies located in Turkey, from the accounting profit.

Consolidation principle is not utilized to prepare financial statements related (o tax that is effective in Turkey,
The effective tax rate in 2020 is 22% (2019: 22%).

According Lo the provisional article 10 added to the Corporate Tax Law, a corporate tax rate of 22% will be taken over the
corporate earnings of the corporate taxpayers for the 2018, 2019 and 2020 accounting pericds,

Tax lossas can be carried forward to offset against future taxable income for up to lve years, Llowever, tax losses cannot
be carried back to offset profits from previous periods,

According to Corporate Tax Law’s 24th article, the corporate tax is imposed by the taxpayer’s tax returns. There iz not an
exact mutual agreement procedure with Tax Authorities in Turkey. Annual corporate tax returns are submitted to the relating

records [or 3 vears and may issue re-assessment based on their findings.
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NOTE 25- TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LTABILITIES) (cont’d)

Income Withholding Tax:

In addition to corporate tax, companies should also caleulate income withholding tax on any dividends and income
distributed. The rate of inceme tax withholding is 3%,

i) Deferred Tax

The deferred tax assct and tax liability are based on the temporary differences, which arise between the financial statements
prepared according to TAS/TFRSs accounting standards and statutory tax financial statements. These diflerences are
usually due o the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for the TAS/TFRS standards and tax
purposes.

Timing differences arc result of recognizing certain income and expense items differently for accounting and tax purposes,
Timing differences are calculated off of the tangible [ixed assets (except land and buildings), intangible fixed asscts, stocks,
the revaluation of prepaid expenses, discount of receivables, provision for termination indemnities, and previous years® loss.
Livery accounting year, the Group reviews the deferred tax asset and labilities, where the deferred tax assets cannot be used
against Lhe future taxable income, the Group writes-oll the recorded deferred tax asset. Corporate tax rate used in the
calculation of deferred taxes is 20% for temporary differences.

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cumulative Deferred Tax Cumulative Delereed Tax

Temporary  pgsets / (Liabilities) Temporary  sgcets / (Liabilities

Differences Differences
Inventories Q43,975 [88.795 576.786 126.893
Mon-Current Assets (Net) (525.802.123) {66.307.8069) (518.424.295) (65.032.304)
Provision for Emplovment
Termination Benchts 32,134,270 (426854 27.764.472 5.552.894
Guarantee Provisions 13.412.222 2.682.444 11.436343 2.515.995
Ré&D Discount 252042519 500.408.504 [ 83.309.407 36.661.881
Carried Forward Financial Loss (*) 138.540.236 27.7709.247 158,700,909 312,232,554
Derivative Instruments 21.274.167 4254 833 (442.165) (97.276)
Rediscount ExpensesTncome (Met) (542.863) (108.573) (452.673) (99.588)
Lawsuit Provisions $.249.729 1.249.946 4174012 18283
Oither (MNet) o 7.341.258 1.468.253 3.342.224 TA5.290
Total 2777243 ) 13.534.622

(*} Tt is forcscen that the financial loss of the current period will be completely lowered in the next 3 years.
Movement of Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities): 31 DEEL":?_:::Z?E“ 14 Dectr‘lj:ll:rl:ru;.?iﬂ
Opening Balance 13.534.622 (6.363.539)
Deferred Tax (Expense) / Tncome Charged to Profit or Loss 13.590.321 19.313.733
Deferred Tax Income Charged to Comprehensive Tncome 647.451 S84 428
Closing Balance - : - 27.772.434 13.534.622
The reconciliation of the current tax expense with the period profivloss is as follows:

o R ot 1 January - 1 January —
Reconciliation of Tax Provision: 31 December 2020 31 December 21{1 9
Income / {Loss) from Continuing Operations 532.551 2,788,954
Corporate Tax Rate 22% (117161 {(613.570)
Tax Effeels of:

-Impact of change in tax ratc on deferred tax amount 10.651 &
-R&D Incentive 13.746.623 16.423.235
-R&T Support Tncome 91989 97.062
~Mon-deductible expenses (696.474) {33.328)
-Income Mol Subject to Tax (131.544) 3.070.432
-Other - 211.683 55.040
Income/{Expense) on Tax Provision Recognised in Profit or Loss : 13.115.767 S 18.998.871
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NOTE 26 - EARNINGS / (1.O55) PER SHARE

1 January — 1 January —

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Met Profit / (T.oss) for The Perind 13.648.318 21787825
Weighted Average Number of Shares with Nominal Value ol 1 Piaster 8.400.000,000 8.400.000.000
Income Per 100 Share with Nominal Value of TL 1 Each 0,1625 025094

NOTE 27- BELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a) Belated Party Payahle and Receivable Balances:

Group's receivables from related partics are mainly due to trade goods, service sales and rent income. Group’s payables to
related parties are mainly due to raw material, service purchases and rent expenses,

The Group does not charge interest on its trade receivables from related parties.

31 December 2020 Receivables Tayahles
Balances with Related Parties
Trade MNop-Trade Trade Non-Trade
ltochu Corporation Tokyo 25.905.891 - 291.116.848 -
Tsuzu Motors Lid. Tokyo 0138712 - 3.924.448 -
Celile Motor Ticarct AS. 731.645 - - -
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz, AS. 656,345 " - -
Tsuzn Motors Europe NV 27.064 - - -
[techu France - - [75.654 -
AEL] Sigorta Acentelifi A5, - - 143,405 -
Tsuzu Motors Co. Thailand Lid. - - 76.225 -
AG Anadolu Grubu Helding ALS. - - 69 542 -
Migros Ticarst A5, - - 2280 -
Payables to Sharcholders (%) - - B 2109
Tuotal ) 30.479.657 - 295.508.402 9109
31 December 2019 Receivables Payables
Balances with Related Parfies Trade MNon-Trade Trade Noo-Trade
Itochu Corporation Tokyo 1.223.666 - 170457 879 -
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. AS. 647.620 - - -
Celik Motor Ticaret A3, 613.628 - - -
Tsuzu Maotors Lid. Tokyo 81437 - 3.237.0232 -
Anadolu Landini Traktir Uretim ve Pazarlama A8 7.570 2 - -
Tsuzu Motors Europe NV 50 - - -
Isuzu Motors International Operation Thailand - - 4510104 -
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding ALS. = i 674818 2
Efestur Turtzm [sletmeleri A8, - - 578.122 -
Migros Ticaret A.5. - - 417.402 =
AR Sigorta Acenteligi A3, . = 39019 i
Adel Kalemeilik Tic. ve San. A8, - 5 5.485 -
Anadaolu Ffes Biracihik ve Malt Sanayi 4.5, - - 4364 -
lsuzn Motors Co. Thailand Ltd. - - 133 .
_ Payables to Shareholders (*) o= = - 5.109
_Total 2.573.971 - 179.944.348 9,109

(*) Non-Trade Payables (o Shareholders balance is classified under other payables in balance shest,




ANADOLU ISUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY Page No: 40
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated )

NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSIURES (cont*d)
b) Related Party Transactions:

1 January-31 December 20240

Goods and Fixed Total
Sales to Related Parties Services Assets Other Expense/

Purchases Purchases Income Purchases
ltechu Corporation Tokyo 27.357.983 - - 27.357.983
Tsuzu Motors Lid, Tokyo 17.670.431 - - 17.670.431
[suzu Motors International Operation Thailand 2314612 - - 2.814.612
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. AS. 2263713 - x 2,263.713
Celik Molor Ticaret A5, 1.725.0584 - 113.000 1.340.094
[suzu Maotors Europe MV 245801 - - 245.301
AEH Sigorta Acentelizgi A5, 80,000 - - S0.000
AG Anadolu Grubu Lllolding A5 1462 - - 1462
Total 52.159.096 - 115.000 52.274.096

1 January-31 December 2019

Goods and Fixed Total
Services Aszsets Other Expense!
Sales to Related Parties Purchases  Purchases JArtonie; - Rarihases
Isuzu Mators Ltd. Tokyo 47 549471 - - 47.549.471
liwchy Corporation Tokya 2.123.310 - - 2123310
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz. A.S. 2.011.373 - - 2011373
Celil Maotor Ticarct A.5. [.364.043 - 24.030 1.3858.073
Isuzu Motors International Operation Thailand 1,303,898 - - 1.303.898
Ttochu Fransa 257989 - - 237.989
Anadolu Landini Traktor Oretim ve Pazarlama A_S 7570 - 120810 128.380
AG Anadoly Grubu Holding A8, 22,205 §.200 9,769 40,174
Anadolu Bilisim Lizmetleri A.S. - - 16362 16.362
[suzn Motors Germany Gmbh 453 - - 1.453
Total 54,641,312 #.200 170,971 5:4.820.483
1 January-31 December 2020
Goods and Fixed Total
Services Assets Other Fxpensze!
Purchases from Related Parties Purchases Purchases Expenses Purchases
Ttochu Corporation Tokyo 337.805.486 - - 337.805.486
Lsuzu Motors International Operation Thailand 34888097 " 107.829 34,995,926
Tsuzu Maotors Lid, Tokyo 4043003 - B.720.845 12.763.850
AG Anadolu Grubu Holding A8, 8.572.294 - - §.572.294
Efestur Turizm igletmeleri A.S. 1.078.838 - - 1.078.538
Celik Motor Ticaret A.S. 199,722 9.261 - 208.983
Tsuzu Motors Co. Thailand Litd. 145387 - - 145387
Migros Ticaret ALS. 62.645 - - 62.645
Anadolu Bilisim Hizmetleri A.S. 30.524 - - 30.924
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz A5, 6515 23.043 - 29.558
Anadolu Efes Biracihk ve Malt Sanayi A5, 17.995 - - 17.995
Adel Kalemeilik Tic. ve San. AS. 17.320 - 17.320

Anadolu Landini Trakttr Uretim ve Pazarlama A S - - 5.713
Total 386.868.228 38.017 8.828.674 395.734.910
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NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont'd)
b) Related Party Transactions (cont’d):
1 January-31 December 2019

Goods and  Fixed Assels Other Tuotal

Services Purchases Expenses Fxpense/

Purchases from Related Parties Purchases Purchases
Itochu Corporation Tokyo 208.500.767 - - 208.500.767
Tsuzu Motors Ttd, Tokyo §.746.779 - 5.178.167 13.924.946
AG Anadolu Grubu LHolding A.S. T7.649.051 7159 132.0935 T.THR.303
1suzu Motors International Operation Thailand 5401.762 - 348.1238 5.749.890
Efestur Turizm [sletmeleri A5, 5.018.167 - - 5.018.167
Ttochu Shanghai ltd 2.203.972 - - 2.203.972
Celik Motor Ticaret A5, [.629.913 30,500 51,930 1.712.343
Anadolu Biligim Hizmetler ALS. 1.205.309 0400 : L214.709
Isuzu Matars Co. Thailand Lid. 276.761 - - 276.761
Migros Ticaret A5 218942 - = 218.942
Anadolu Motor Uretim ve Paz., AS. 27.160 - - 27.160
Adel Kalemailik Tic. ve San, AL, 22.159 - - 22.159
igdoh] T.andini Traktsr Urelim ve Pazarlama 14,406 3.403 = 17.809
Anadolu Efes Biracihk ve Malt Sanayi A.S, 14.779 - - 14.779
Anadalu Saghk Merkezi Tktisadi Isletmesi 9731 - - 973
Taotal 240,930,900 Sih462 5.710.320 246.691.682

¢) Donations to Anadolu Egitim ve Sosyal Yardim Vakfi:

As per the Main Articles of Association of the Group, at least 2% - 5% of the Group's profit before tax following the distribution
of lst dividend shall be donated to Anadolu Egitim ve Sosyal Yardun Vakfi as long as it is subject to tax exemption. Donation
was not made o Anadolu Egitim ve Sosyal Yardim Vakli by the Group in 2020 {Donation was not made in 2019).

d) Key management compensation:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Salaries and other short-term benefits 12068117 10,960,402
Total 12.068.117 10,960,402

The benefits provided to top management (General managers and Directors) include salaries, bonuses, premiums, and the
employer's share of social security.

NOTE 28 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to cnsure that entities in the Group will be able o continue as a going concem while
maximizing its profit and market value through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The Group's equity comprised of cash and cash equivalents in Mote 4 and equity items in Note 16,

Kisks, associated with cach capilal class, and the capital cost are evaluated by the top management. Tt is aimed that the
capital structure will be set in balance by means of new borrowings or repaying the existing debls as well as dividend
payments and new share issuances based on the top management evaluations,
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
{a) Capital risk management {cont’d)

The Group menitors capital by using debt to total capital rtio. This ratio is calculated by dividing the net debt by total
capital, The net debt is caleulated by excluding the cash and cash equivalent amounts from the total debt amount (including
credits, leasing and commercial debls as indicated in the balance sheet).

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Net Debt 888.056.7335 T80.635.292
Total Equity 575.146.529 564.088.174
Net Debt/Total Equity 1,54 1,38

Increase of the rate of net debts to equily compared to prior year arise from the periodical inerease in using credits,
General strategy of the Group based on shareholders® equity is not different from previous periods.

The Group conducts hedging contracts (including derivative financial instruments) for the purpose of diversifying foreign
currency fluctuation risks,

(b) Price risk

The Group has no financial assets that will expose it to price risk.

c) Market risk

The Group is subject to the financial risks related to the changes in the exchange rate (Please see (d) below) and interest
rale (Please see (&) below) due to its operations and other (Please see (f) below). Also due to having financial instruments,
the Group also bears the risk of other parties not mecting the requirsments of agreements (Please sce (g) below).

Market risks seen at the level of the Group are measured in accordance with sensilivity analyses,

The market risk of the Group incurred during the current year or the method of handling the encountered risks or the method
of measuring those risks arc not different from the previous year,

{d) Foreign exchange risk management

Fureign currency transactions may result in foreign currency risk,

The Group maintains foreign currency lime deposit accounts in banks as the Group has receivables and payables in foreign
currencies, As a consequence, the Group is exposad to foreign currency exchange risk due to the changes in exchange rates

used for converling assets and liabilities into TL. Forvign exchange risk arises from future trade operalions and the
differences hetween assets and liabilities.
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL TNSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

(d) Foreign cxchange risle management (cont’d)

Statement of Poreign Exchange Bate Sensitivity Analysis

31 December 2020

Profii / Loss
Appreciation of  Depreciation of
Foreign Foreign
Currency Currency
Tn case of US Dollar increases in 10% against TL;
1- 15 Dollar Net Assel/ Liability 1,856,641 {1.856.641)
_2-US Dollar Hedges (<) B " -
_3- Net Effect of US Dallar (1 +2) 1.856.641 (1.856.641)
" In case of Euro increases in 10% against TL;
4- Furo Met Assel [ Liability 15.963.191 i(15.963.191)
5- Luro Hedges (<) B - -
6- Net Effect of Euro (4453) 15.9%3.191 {15.963.191)
11 case of other exchange rules increase in 0% agamst TL;
7- Other Exchange Rates Net Assel [ Liability (11.192.347) 11.192.347
8- Other Exchange Rates Hedges () _ -
9- Net Effect of Other Exchange Rates (41-5} _ (11,192.347) 11.192.347
TOTAL (3+6+9) . 627485 {6 627.485)
Statement of Forcign Exchange Rate Sensitivily Analysi
31 December 20149
Profit / Loss
Appreciation of  Depreciation of
Currency Currency
10 case of 115 Dallar inereases in 10% against TL;
1- U8 Daollar Net Asset / Liabilily 7.738.012 (7.738.612)
2- 118 Doflur Hedges (-) = - -
3= Net Effect of US Dollar (1 +2) 7.738.012 {7.738.612)
Tn case of Euro increases in 10% against TL.
4- Furo Net Assct / Liability (21.699.709) 21.699.709
5- Buro Hedges (-] N - -
ﬁ- Net Effect of Euro {4+5} ) (21.699.709) 21.699.709
* In case of other exchange rales increase in 10% against TL;
7= Other Exchange Rates Net Asset/ Liability (7.744.715) 7.744.713
8- Other Fxchange Rates Hedges () - B -
9- Net Fifect of Other Exchange Rates (4+5) N (7.744.715) ?.T44.Trlv§

TOLAL (3+H6+9) (21.705.812) 21.705.812
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NOTE 23 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cant'd)

() Foregn exchange risk managemeal {cond’d)

Etnternent of Foreign Currency Fosition

H Decemlier 512 31 Decesnher 2019
TLAwawit 115 Dallar Eum ¥en tdher | TLAmunt LS Dedar Furn Yen tieher
1. Triale Roeeivibiles 143350141 P |5 280,787 1 | 105 203 W0 13R24.071 LB HTS (1L N C Bl
30 Moartery Fiemcinl Aiscts 95.127.150 TS W 561367 19834 | WGzA0K BENE 11MR3TE A
2. Fine-sindetney Funancind Assts - = : = + s 3 : - Z
- . - P i | ipsuksns - ; - LesE4Ld
renL Ageels (LH=3) 18611311 WiA A BANTLEAL 0543067 JAAN) | MIETARTI  IAASETIS 1141 P

3 Trode Bescsivasles = - - - -1 - E - - i+
o Moadsery Firemciul Aisew i - - = - - - z - =
£, Man-ranetan Financal Amcla - - . - - - L 2 3

T Cihet 2 = : - - H = . - -
E. Mon-current Assees (3467} _ - - - - i - - - -
5. Tatal Assets (o) TARATIATE #1545 15070652 ALALE T J4ERMY | IM4STIATE  1DM4RTTS IH,11:1,440 1 E1ESIR
18 Tieals Papudsles il v 3 LI E 14 185 R34 | AT S -1 BEE 179 501 SID24T HAED LG
1L Paencial Lishises LARSATT - ITI 0 = -4 IT3HMm2IT - ELREE R ] -
11e Moaerery Uther Lichiraes & 41350 EXI6 20037 JL AT = I AAXLI5E - F1L.195 - 32,856
_ 13 Nue-Mossctury Dilees Lishilmes 5054973 - SARART z | GAMOGE 3120 715,438 . -
13 Current Ligkicies (10=11412) IS ASIATS LA S0 5. I6AA5 LETIAGT.ENT -1 ASORSINR A12.247 SLINES3L 1307 RI4T 164,908
14 Tralz Payaible - - - - : & . - r
| = Fensinl Lishilitica Lk Lk By 4 7505 R75 - . JGAEETH - 4.351.02% -
L. Mozezey Cther Lagilities £ - = - . s - - -
| flz. Mie-Miaeusy Ciier Lizhilses = E - = - - . - -
17, Mon-zurrent Libilres (L1 1S H6) Lo, b3 THE = 17543475 - - 25555338 - -
I H. Tacal Liahilities (13173 % 24,344,007 151 AN 4LEE0IH 6T RSG5 41 - 432,247 RTIEAT LEATABLTAT  13SEOTE
14, (Hf-talmare Stel Rerivative [asoraments Meg Assct |
_LAabllity] Fraitkn [19%-130 341 &41L.TR IS ALG 35 5HLHE - o - -

19a Tonl Ammini of Halgal ey i )
i CHLASLTOR 1005 &6 (35300000 c &

4. Fouel Arcousrof |edged 15

(217280371 1303787 5LERTRA) (156E.236.203  21HTSNI9

2%l Ferelen Curncmcy ].lgul.;.'f_L:lhllillﬂth {814 1493 E5.LTLRE0 2519011 17.721.421 {1, LR S 16} H3IM K61
AL Mgy Hema Met Foreign Corrency Aty §LinbEre)

(14 3sS a1 01 1-L20- 1405 Dha) i ETAGTTI [CIR10H)  (FTOO3EN) (LSA1HI0S1G) WaA0) | (EHSRLY)  133FRS2E  (ASYSTID0) (LESREWM) 1LWETAIS
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

{t) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to variable and fixed inlerest rates. Group’s financial liabilities and assets
with fixed and variable inlerest rates (guarantee cle.) are respectively shown at Mote 4.

Interest Rate Position Table

31 December 2020 31 Pecember 2019
Financial Assets with Fived Rates
Financial Assets 248 575997 134 588,657
Financial I.iabilitics (367.530.647) (A60.943.310)
Financial Liabilities With Variable Rates
Financial Assets = 2
Financial Liabilities (535.017.997) (33.244.816)

As of 31 December 2020, if the market interest rate had increased/decreased by 100 basis point with all other variables held
gonstant, period income hefore tax and consolidated equity of participations of the Group would have been higher/lower by
TL 550.180 (31 December 2019: higherflower by TL 332.448).

(f) Funding risl

The ability to fund the existing and prospective debt requircments is managed as necessary by obtaining adequate committed
funding lines fram high quality lenders.

{z) Credit risk management

Holding financial instruments also carties the risk ol the other party’s nol meeting the requirements of the agreement, The
Group's collection risk is mainly derived from trade receivables. Trade receivables are evaluated by the management of the
Group depending on their past experiences and current economic conditions and are presented in financial stalements when
necessary allowances for doubtlul receivables arc provided.

Muost of trade receivables are comprised of receivables from costumers who has given an adequate amounl of guarantees. An
effective contral system was established to collect the receivables. Credit risk arising from transactions is follo wed and these
risks arc taken into account when assessing each debtor, Because there are so many costumers. The Group's credit risk is
dispersed and there is no important credil risk concentration. Receivables from foreign customers as of 31 December 2020
arc TL 163.205.222 and there is no geographical concentration (31 December 2019: TL 195.203.049).
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

() Credit risk management (cont'd)

Beccivables
Trade Receivahles Chther Heceivables
Heluted Oither telated Oreler
CURRENT PERICH Partics Parties Purlies  Partics Maie Depesit Note
Muximuwm eredit visk exposed us of bulance sheet
dute [A+BHC+IHE) Jo.ATHGST JER.519,4%) = S840 fi 6L ML 354
Secared porton af the maximm credis fisk By guaraiees e - ATI65.613 - = -
A Met book vahee of fimnncisl axsets which are undne or
which is not impoired 479657 IT15%0 00 - 3.897.746 T8 262,30, 554 &
B. Rook valus of fnancial assets which conditions ure
renegutinted, and which otherwise would be cownted 35
averdue or impaired - - - - &
. Met hook value of assets, overduoe but nos impoired - 16928541 - - T-8 -
- Bvcured by Guaraniee, i, - 12753877 - - T4 -
0. Met buak value of agsers decrense in value - - - -
- Dhverdue (prass ook valuc) - [TaLr.710) = . T4 H
- r.l.llpq?ﬂ'l'l‘i‘\!.lr{ =) - TR T - - T-H -
« Thhe priet af ner vaine secured by wioramiee €6, . - - =
« Ulrdwe (s ook value) 3 - § =
- Iwpairmeni ) - =
- The past of net vahes secuned by guarantes ste. - . = - 5
E. Elemcnts containing credid risk off the halance sheet . - = - -
Receivahles
‘Trude Receivabiles Other Receivullbes
Related Oilier Related (iber
PRIOE PERIOND Parties Parties Iordies Farfics Mipte Deprusii HNote
Muximum credit plsk sxpased os of halunce shee
date [A+R+CHTIEE) 2575071 399 TSI R0 - 15,004,450 Tl 100 A
Sevrred porian of the rarmnr credit (kB puorantees afe. - EEERICRIEES . - G ¥

A, Mel book valoe of inanciul wsgets which ave nndue or
which is not impuired LR I3 A5d - 13904489 T-H Lok 1014410 4
I, ook value of Geascial assers which conditivns are
reaegotiated, and which atherwise would be caunted ns

overdug ar impaired =

. et book value of assets, overdue bul ool inpatved = 15,809,350 - - -8
- Meeweed by Geararies, alo 5 15.809.550 - # 7-8
v Met hook value of wseds decrease in value * - = . -
= Orvepdues [rross hank vides) - (207} - 2 7-8
lmgrwirwient i< - 364500 . - -8
= Ve poart o gy volue sevnered By paramies vic - 3 -
- Undies (gross baok valws) - ¥ - - -
- fmypairment 1~ ¥ # 3 = it
= The part ol e valoe secured by guarmies cic. = - - =
E. Elements containing credit visk off the halunce sheet ¥ + = - e

The apeing of trade receivables, overdue but not impaired, is as follows:

Receivables
Trade Other Depuosits
31 December 2020 Receivables Receivables  at Banks Derivatives Other
Past due up to 30 days 9.386.630 - - - -
Past due 1 - 3 months 1.583.425 - - - 2
Past due 3 - 12 months 1.783.822 - - - -
Past due | - 5 year - - - s -

Past due over 5 years

Assets covered portion with gnarantee letter ete. 12.753.877
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NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAT TNSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Receivahles
Trade
Receivables

Other
Heeeivables

Depaosits

Derivati
at Banks erivatives

31 December 2019

Past due up to 30 days 12.667.506 - = - -
Past due 1 - 3 months 839424 - - - -
Pastdue 3 - |2 months 2282420 - - - -
Past due 1 - 5 year = - - - -
Past duc over 5 yvears = - - = -
Assets covered portion with guarantee letfer ete. 15.809.350 - - - -

Impairment analysis on trade receivables is made over the ageing table and though assessing the management’s best estimates.

The Choup manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, and reserve borrowing facilitics by continuously

monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Ligquidity risk tables

Prudent liquidily risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and having the availability and
flexibility of funding through an adequate amount of (committed) credit facilities.

The risk of meeting existing and probable future liabilities is managed only by means of having aceess to sufficient number

of trustable creditors.

The table below indicates derivative and non-derivative financial liabilitics of the Group in terms of TL and maturity term.

MNono-Derivative Financial Liabilities

31 December 2020

Total
Contracted
Carrying Cash  Less than 3 Jtol2

Contract Terms Value Dutflows Months Months 1 to 5 Years 5 Years +
Bank Loans 622.554.644 689,725 081 96,066,447 274723698 286561279 314730357
(Other Financial

Liabilities 6005383 6.372.145 577,439 1.954.87% 3.439.827 -
Trade Payables 526.584.529 529552240  528.670.220 R22.020 = -
Oither Payables 6,948 648 17744927 14.264.718 2088126 1.392.083 3
Tutal 1.172.003.206  1.243.304.393  640.878.824  279.648.723 291.393.189  31.473.657

31 December 2019
Taotal
Contraected
Carrving Cash  Less than 3 Jtol2

Contract Terms Yalue Outflows Months Maonths 1toS Years 5 Years +
Bank Loans 494 188.126 54,733,079 [21.580.810 290.148.705 121409201 21.394,6613
el 5579655 6331536 608275 1824826  3.898.435 :

Liahilities
Trade Payables 421.671.065 423.866.378  290.188.520  133.677.838 - -
{Jther Payables 8.215.495 8215495 8215495 2 - =
Taotal 929 .654.341 991,146,788  420.593.100 425,651,389  125307.636 21.594.663

.
ENA
AN




ANADOLU TSUZU OTOMOTIV SANAYI VE TICARET A.8. AND 115 SUBSIDIARY Page No: 48
NOTES TO THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIIT. PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

{Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira unless otherwise indicated)

NOTE 28- NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(cont"d)

Derivative Financial Liabilities
31 December 2020

Total
Carrying Contracted  Less than 3 3to 12
Contract Terms Value Cash Outflows Maonths Months Lto5 Years 5 Years +
Dierivative Cash Oulflow 21.327.295 21.327.259 9.616.707 11.710.592 - -
Total 21.327.299 21.327.299 9616707  11,710.592 - -

‘The Group does not have derivative financial liabilities as of 31 December 2019,
Fair Value and Hedging Disclosures
The Group helicves that registered values of financial instruments reflect their fair values.

Ohjectives of financial risk management

Finding access to financial markets and managing financial risks arisen [rom operational activities of the Group fall under the
responsibility of the Group’s [inance departmenl. Aforementioned risks include market risk { [oreign exchange risk, intercst rate
risk and price risk); financial risk covers market risk (exchange rate risk, fair value of interest risk and price risk), credit risk
liquidity risk and cash How risk.

Determination of the tair value of financial assets and Labilities are explained below:

Level 1: Valuation of the financial assels and liabilitics over the stock exchange prices of similar assets and liabililies resulting
from the transactions in active markets,

Level 2: Valuation of the financial assets and liabilities over the price calculated on the basis of the data that is dircelly or
indirectly ahservable in the market other than the stock exchange price of the relevant asset or liability determined on the first
level.

Level 3: Valuation of the financial assets and habilities carried out in the ahsence ol observable data in the market for determining
the Fair value of the relevant asset or labilicy.

Derivative Financial Instruments

In order ti hedge these risks, the Group enters into forward foreign cwrrency transaction agreements as 4 financial instrument
where necessary,

As of 31 December 2020, the Group's foreign currency transaction agreement, which is a derivative financial instrument, is
as follows:

_Financial assels earried at fair value B Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tnta]'_:
Dierivative assels (Note &) - 53,132 - 53.132
Total - 53.132 - 53.132
Financial liabilities carried at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ~ Total
Derivative liabilities (Mote §) - 21.327.299 - 21.327.299
‘T'otal - 21.327.299 - 21.327.299

As of 31 December 2019, the Group's forsign currency transaction agreement, which is a derivative financial instrament, 15
as follows:

Financial assets carried at fair value B Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tuta._]___
Derivative assets (MNote 8) - 442,163 - 442,165
Total - 442.163 - 442.165

NOTE 19- EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Mone.
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